Brogent Technologies Inc.
2020 Annual Shareholders’ Meeting Minutes

Time: 9:00AM, Thursday, May 28, 2020
Venue: No. 9, Fuxing 4th Road, Qianzhen District, Kaohsiung City
(Assembly Hall, Building A, Brogent Technologies)
Total Outstanding Brogent shares: 55,747,410 shares
Total shares represented by shareholders present in person or by proxy: 41,519,549 shares
(among them 2,426,424 shares voted via electronic transmission.), percentage of
shares held by shareholders present in person or by proxy: 74.47 %.
Chairman: Chih-Chuan Chen, the Chairman of the Board of Directors
Presenters: Chih-Hung Ouyang (C.E.Q.), Chin-Huo Huang (Director), Chun-Hao Cheng
(Director), Chin-Wen Chuang (Independent Director), Yung-Liang Huang
(Supervisor) , Yi-Hsiang Huang (Supervisor) , Ken-Huang Lin (Supervisor),
Yi-Shun Chang (CPA of Grant Thornton Taiwan), Kalvin Huang (Lawyer of
Formosan Brothers), Hui-Chuang Lin (C.F.O.)

Minutes Recorder: Shu-Ching Lin
The aggregate shareholding of the shareholders present in person or by proxy constituted a

quorum. The Chairman called the meeting to order.
A. Chairman's Address (omitted)

B. Reports
I: The 2019 Business Report is hereby submitted for review.
Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 1 of the Manual for the Business Report.

Il: The 2019 Supervisors' Audit Report is hereby submitted for review.
Explanation: Please refer to Attachment 2 of the Manual for the Supervisors' Audit
Report.



I11: The 2019 Report on Remuneration Distribution of Employees, Directors, and

Supervisors is hereby submitted for review.

Explanation: Pursuant to Article 21 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation, if
the Company has generated profits in the current year, five to fifteen
percent of the profits shall be set aside for employee remuneration.
The remuneration for Directors and Supervisors shall be no higher
than two percent. The proposed employee remuneration is
NT$34,599,155 and the proposed remuneration for Directors and
Supervisors is NT$7,594,936; both shall be distributed in cash and
may be issued in installments.

IV: Amendment to “Guidelines for the Adoption of Codes of Ethical Conduct for

Directors, Supervisors and Managers”. for review.

Explanation: Revised in accordance with establishment of audit committee, it is
proposed to revise “Guidelines for the Adoption of Codes of Ethical
Conduct for Directors, Supervisors and Managers”, and the rule name
change to “Guidelines for the Adoption of Codes of Ethical Conduct
for Directors and Managers”. Please refer to Attachment 3 of the
Manual for the Comparison Table before and after revision.

V: Amendment to “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles” for review.
Explanation: Revised in accordance with establishment of audit committee, it is
proposed to revise “Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice
Principles”. Please refer to Attachment 4 of the Manual for the
Comparison Table before and after revision.

C. Ratifications
Item 1: The 2019 Business Report and Financial Report are hereby submitted for
ratification. (Proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: 1.The Company's 2019 Financial Report has been audited by CPAs Yao
Ting Li and Yi-Shun Chang of Grant Thornton Taiwan. The Financial
Report and Business Report have been forwarded to the Supervisors for
review, and the written Audit Report is submitted for approval.
2.The Company's 2019 Business Report (please refer to Attachment 1 of
the Manual) and Financial Report (please refer to Attachment 5 of the
Manual).
3.The reports are hereby submitted for ratification.
Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:
41,511,535 pro votes, accounting for 99.98% of the aggregate total votes;
524 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 7,490 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

Item 2: The 2019 Earnings Distribution Proposal is hereby submitted for ratification.
(Proposed by the Board of Directors)
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Explanation: 1.The Company's net profit after tax in 2019 amounted to NT$366,525,317

of which 10% (NT$36,612,445) has been set aside as the legal reserve.
The distributable profits available as of the end of 2019 amounted to
NT$366,375,545. According to Article 22 of the Company's Articles of
Incorporation, a cash dividend of NT$5.6 per share is proposed for the
current year. Based on the 55,747,410shares outstanding, the total cash
dividend to be distributed is NT$312,185,496. The cumulative undistributed
profits at the end of the period is NT$2,720,302.

2.The Board of Directors shall be authorized to separately establish a
record date and issuance date etc. following the resolution of the Annual
Shareholders Meeting.

3.The above cash distribution will be paid to the rounded TWD..

4.1n the event the numbers of shares outstanding are subsequently affected
by changes in the Company's share capital or other reasons, resulting in
the necessity to revise the shareholder's payout ratio, the shareholders
shall be requested to authorize the Board of Directors at the Annual
Shareholders Meeting to conduct such revision at its full discretion.

5.The Company's 2019 Earnings Distribution Table is as follows:

Brogent Technologies Inc.
PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE

Year 2019
Unit: NT$

Item Sub Total Total
Balance, Beginning of Year 251,091
Less: Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (400,863)
Plus: Net Income in 2019 366,525,317
Subtotal 366,375,545
Less: Legal Reserve (36,612,445)
Less: Special Reserve for using equity method (14,857,302)
Distribution Item:
Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders
(NT$5.6 Per Share) (312,185,496) | (363,655,243)
Balance, end of Year 2,720,302
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6. The table is hereby submitted for ratification.

Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:

41,511,535 pro votes, accounting for 99.98% of the aggregate total votes;
1,784 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 6,230 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.



D. Matters for Discussion-I
Item 1. The amendment of clauses of the “Articles of Incorporation” is hereby
submitted for discussion. (proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: 1. Revised in accordance with amendment in laws and regulations and
establishment of audit committee, amendments for clauses of the
Company's “Articles of Incorporation” are proposed.
2. Please refer to Attachment 6 of the Manual for the Comparison Table of
the "Axrticles of Incorporation” before and after revision.
3. Submitted for discussion.
Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:
41,509,955 pro votes, accounting for 99.97% of the aggregate total votes;
524 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 9,070 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

Item 2: The amendment of clauses of the “Rules of Procedure for Shareholders
Meetings” is hereby submitted for discussion. (proposed by the Board of
Directors)

Explanation: 1. To comply with the laws and regulations by Public Companies".

amendments for clauses of the Company's “Rules of Procedure for
Shareholders Meetings” are proposed.

2. Please refer to Attachment 7 of the Manual for the Comparison Table of
the " Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings " before and after
revision.

3. Submitted for discussion.

Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:

41,809,948 pro votes, accounting for 99.97% of the aggregate total votes;
531 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 9,070 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

Item 3: The amendment of clauses of the “Procedures for Election of Directors and
Supervisors” is hereby submitted for discussion. (proposed by the Board of
Directors)

Explanation: 1. Revised in accordance with establishment of audit committee, it is

proposed to revise “Procedures for Election of Directors and
Supervisors 7, and the rule name change to “Procedures for Election
of Directors”.

2. Please refer to Attachment 8 of the Manual for the Comparison Table
of the " Procedures for Election of Directors and Supervisors " before
and after revision.

3. Submitted for discussion.

Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:

41,509,956 pro votes, accounting for 99.97% of the aggregate total votes;
524 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 9,069 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.
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Item 4: The amendment of clauses of the “Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of
Assets” is hereby submitted for discussion. (proposed by the Board of
Directors)

Explanation: 1. Revised in accordance with establishment of audit committee, it is

proposed to revise “Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of
Assets”.

2. Please refer to Attachment 9 of the Manual for the Comparison Table
of the “Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets” before and
after revision.

3. Submitted for discussion.

Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:

41,509,953 pro votes, accounting for 99.97% of the aggregate total votes;
524 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 9,072 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

Item 5: The amendment of clauses of the “Operational Procedures for Endorsements
and Guarantees” is hereby submitted for discussion. (proposed by the Board of
Directors)

Explanation: 1. Revised in accordance with establishment of audit committee, it is

proposed to revise “Operational Procedures for Endorsements and
Guarantees”.
2.Please refer to Attachment 10 of the Manual for the Comparison Table
of the " Operational Procedures for Endorsements and Guarantees "
before and after revision.
3. Submitted for discussion.
Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:
41,509,953 pro votes, accounting for 99.97% of the aggregate total votes;
527 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 9,069 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

Item 6: The amendment of clauses of the “Operational Procedures for Loaning of
Company Funds” is hereby submitted for discussion. (proposed by the Board
of Directors)

Explanation: 1. Revised in accordance with establishment of audit committee, it is

proposed to revise “Operational Procedures for Loaning of Company
Funds”.
2.Please refer to Attachment 11 of the Manual for the Comparison Table
of the it is proposed to revise “Operational Procedures for Loaning of
Company Funds” before and after revision.
3. Submitted for discussion.
Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:
41,509,953 pro votes, accounting for 99.97% of the aggregate total votes;
527 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 9,069 votes.
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The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

E. Votes

Proposal: A vote is hereby called for the comprehensive reelection of Directors.
(proposed by the Board of Directors)
Explanation: 1.The terms of the Company's current Directors and Supervisors shall reach
three years on May 30, 2020 and a reelection shall be held at this
Shareholders Meeting in accordance with regulations.
2.In accordance with the provisions of the Securities Exchange Law, an
audit committee is set up to replace the supervisory authority, and no
supervisor is required.
3.According to Article 14 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation. This
election will result in seven Directors (including three Independent
Directors).
4.The Directors and Supervisors elected today shall serve a term of three
years from May 28, 2020 to May 27, 2023. The terms of the original
Directors and Supervisors shall expire upon the completion of the election
in this Annual Shareholders Meeting.
5.According to Article 14 of the Company's Articles of Incorporation,
Independent Directors are elected on a candidate nomination system. The
list of candidates for Independent Directors information is as follows:

Name Lewis Lee

National Chengchi University, Department

Education of Accounting.

Experience Partner, PwC, Taiwan.

Number of shares held | O shares

Name Chih-Poung Liou
Education LL. M., University of Tokyo (Japan)
Experience Managing Partner, Stellex Law Firm.

Number of shares held | O shares

Name Jih-Ching Chiu

Education Ph.D., CSIE, Chiao-Tung University,

Associate Professor, National Sun Yat-sen

Experience University

Number of shares held | O shares




6. Submitted for election.
Election Results:

EREE L H e

Directors
Account No. or
D NO. Name Number of votes

2 Chih-Hung Ouyang 71,080,477

Chang chun Investment Co. 66,430,359
7396 Ltd. Representative

Chih-Chuan Chen

78 Chin-Huo Huang 61,550,148

82 Chun-Hao Cheng 60,965,530

Independent Directors

ACC(;%“;II(\)T?' or Name Number of votes
S512046**** Lewis Lee 6,493,923
B12046**** Chih-Poung Liou 6,443,365
T12084**** Jih-Ching Chiu 6,420,747

F. Matters for Discussion-I1

Proposal: The proposal for lifting the ban on competition between newly elected
Directors and their representatives is hereby submitted for discussion.
(proposed by the Board of Directors)

Explanation: 1.Pursuant to Article 209 of the Company Act, a Director who acts for
himself or on behalf of another person within the scope of the Company's
business operations shall explain to the meeting of shareholders the
essential contents of such act and obtain approval.

2.To make use of the expertise and related experience of the Company's
Directors, the lift of the ban on competition between newly elected
Directors and their representatives is hereby submitted for approval in
the 2020 Annual Shareholders Meeting in accordance with the law.
3.The details of the proposed shareholders 'general meeting to
dismiss directors' competition are as follows:

Title Name Other positions
_ Chih-Hung Cha!rman, Fu Wu Investment Ltd.

Director Ouyang Cha!rman, Brogent Global I_nc.

Chairman, Brogent Mechanical Inc.
Chang chun Vice President, Investment Administration
Investment Division, RT-Mart International.

Director Co. Ltd. _ Representative, MEGA GROWTH
Representative | VENTURE CAPITAL CO., LTD.
Chih-Chuan Representative ,Gogoro Inc.

Chen Representative, DIAMOND BIOFUND
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INC.
Representative, DIAMOND CAPITAL
INC.
Representative, MIHO INTERNATIONAL
COSMETICCO, LTD.
: Chin-Huo Chairman, Fu Ying Metal Industrial Co.,
Director
Huang Ltd.
Director Chun-Hao Chairman, Brogent Creat_ive Inc.
Cheng President, Brogent Creative Inc.
Independent | Lewis Lee Vice director, ZHI CHENG Co-located
Director CPA Firm.
Independent Director ,SOFT-WORLD
INTERNATIONAL CORPORATION.
Independent | Chih-Poung Managing Partner, Stellex Law Firm.
Director Liou Commissioner, Regulatory Committee,
Ministry of Labor (from 1989 to present).
Independent Director , JIH SUN
FINANCIAL HOLDING CO., LTD.
Independent | Jih-Ching Associate Professor, National Sun Yat-sen
Director Chiu University

4.Submitted for discussion.

Resolution: The balloting outcome including votes exercised through electronic voting:

41,106,795pro votes, accounting for 99.00% of the aggregate total votes;
1,651 con votes, 0 invalid vote, abstention/ Non-voting votes: 411,103 votes.
The present issue is duly resolved exactly as proposed.

G. Special motions
There being no other business and special motion, upon a motion duly made and
seconded, the meeting was adjourned.

H. Meeting Adjourned
Meeting adjourned at 9:43 AM Wednesday, May28, 2020.



(Attachment 1)
Brogent Technologies Inc.
Business Report

1) Operating policies

Brogent has a record-high year of revenue and new contract in 2019 with the
successful grand openings of our clients, Legoland Florida, the U.S.A., Dream World
Gold Coast Area, Australia and FlyOver Iceland. In 2020, Brogent will step forward
toward the following directions: 1. Equipment Sale: Moving from premium-sized to
mid-sized and further to small-sized products. Personalized products will also be
gradually developed. 2. To acquire more IPs through strategies: By developing contents
through the acquired IPs, we can license the digital contents to operating sites and our
clients, in order to gradually increase the royalty income. 3. Urban expansion strategy:
expanding from the main urban areas to the second-tier or third-tier suburban
cities. Looking forward, with the continuous renovation and market expansion, the
growth of Brogent is expectable.

2) Business Plan Implementation Results:

The Company's net operating revenue in 2019 amounted to NT$2,080.441 million,
an increase of approximately 27% from the net operating revenue of NT$1,637.438
million in 2018. The Company's net profit in the current period amounted to
NT$383.810 million, a 48% increase from NT$258.418 million in 2018.

3) Operating Income and Budget Execution

(1) Operating Income

The categories of operating income in 2019 included income from construction
contract, service and maintenance, ticket sales and other operations, and the total amount
was NT$2,080.441 million, a growth of NT$443.003 million from the NT$1,637.438
million in 2018. The primary reason was the record high number of received orders,
resulting in the increase of total revenue for the year from the previous year.

(2) Operating Expenses

Total operating expenses in 2019 amounted to NT$581.551 million, an increase of
NT$149.821 million from the NT$431.730 million of 2018. The primary reasons were
mainly from the increased manpower related to the expansion of the group along with
the marketing expense of our eSports “Lightning Wings” and the purchase of
R&D components. These expenditures resulted in the substantial increase of
consolidated expenses for the Group in 2019 compared to 2018.

4) Profitability Analysis
The Company continued to expand its scale of operations and diversification in
2019. With an increase in revenue, the Group's operating expense ratio increased 2%
compared with 2018. Net profits increased 48%. With the increase of new contracts and
Brogent’s brand awareness in the global markets, as well as the business direction
heading for the mid-sized segment, the growth power of 2020 is expected to be enhanced
to the next level.

5) Research and Development

The Company continues to provide customers with the best services, create joyful
8



experiences, and maximize value for shareholders with its unique, industry-leading
research and development capabilities. The research and development expenses in 2019
increased NT$54.033 million. The R&D expenses were invested mainly on the
optimization and improvement of our mid- and small-sized products. The
Company shall continue to innovate and remain committed to research and development
because these aspects of operation embody corporate competitiveness. The Company
will keep engaging in advanced technological R&D and innovative applications, and
implement product-centric design and research as well as systematic management to
maintain the leading position of products and technologies.
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(Attachment 2)
Brogent Technologies Inc.

Supervisors' Audit Report

The 2019 Financial Statements compiled and delivered by the Board of Directors
have been audited by Hui-Ping Liu and Jay Lo, certified public accountants practicing
at Grant Thornton Taiwan. The Financial Statements, along with the Business Report
and Earnings Distribution Table, have been reviewed by the Supervisors who have
found them to be compliant with regulations. The Audit Report is therefore provided in
accordance with the provisions stipulated in Article 219 of the Company Act and filed

for approval.
To

2020 Annual Shareholders Meeting of Brogent Technologies Inc.

Brogent Technologies Inc.

Supervisor: Yi-Hsiang Huang ¥ ‘,5:

Supervisor: Yung-Liang Huang B e

yq=|
Supervisor: Gen-Huang Lin ;;’;f‘i):
2

March 09, 2020
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(Attachment 3)
Comparison Table of the "Guidelines for the Adoption of Codes of Ethical Conduct for Directors and
Managers" of Brogent Technologies Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description

Title Guidelines for the Adoption of Guidelines for the Adoption of Revised in
Codes of Ethical Conduct for Codes of Ethical Conduct for accordance
Directors;-Supervisors-and Directors and Managers. with
Managers. establishment

of audit
committee.

Article 2 Applicable subjects Applicable subjects Revised in
The Guidelines shall apply to The Guidelines shall apply to s\zc;grdance
the directors, supervisers; and the directors and managerial establishment
managerial officers of the officers of the Company of audit
Company (including general (including general managers or committee
managers or their equivalents, their equivalents, deputy '
deputy assistant general assistant general managers or
managers or their equivalents, their equivalents, chief financial
chief financial and chief and chief accounting officers
accounting officers and other and other persons authorized to
persons authorized to manage manage affairs and sign
affairs and sign documents on documents on behalf of the
behalf of the company). company).

Article 3 Scope of application Scope of application Revised in
The Guidelines are adopted for ;he Gmdelmis are adop_ted for ac_c{‘grdance
the purpose of encouraging 1€ purpose of encouraging | with
directors . and directors and managerlgl o_fflcer_s establl_shment

TSUPERVSOIS, of the Company to act in line with | of audit
managerial officers of the thical standards and to hel it
Company to act in line with ethica s;n ards an q o he F(’j h committee.
ethical standards and to help m;[]e_reslte pgrtlées UP herstan t el
interested parties understand the e} t'ﬁa Cstan aras Oht ¢ pefrsonr)e
ethical standards of the personnel '?heire dut?ggpziitnyr:el\\l/eenr': Sﬁ(ret?]riglng
of the Company when performing duct th ,t prevent . h
their duties; it prevent unethical 90,[” u?[t tfftih mgy 'mpair 3
conduct that may impair the ISr][oeéﬁ;o(I) derse ompany an
interest of the Company and '

Stockholders.

Article 4 Content of the code: at least the Content of the code: at least the Revised in
following eight matters: following eight matters: accordance
1. Prevention of conflicts of 1. Prevention of conflicts of with q
interest interest amendment

in laws and
1). The directors , supervisor, and | 1). The directors and managerial regulations
managerial officer of the company | officer of the company shall and
shall perform their duties in an perform their duties in an establishment
objective and efficient manner; a | objective and efficient manner; a | of an audit
person in such a position cannot person in such a position cannot committee.

take advantage of their position in
the company to obtain improper
benefits for either themselves or
their spouse, parents, children, or
relatives within the third-degree of
kinship.

take advantage of their position in
the company to obtain improper
benefits for either themselves or
their spouse, parents, children, or
relatives within the second degree
of kinship.
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2). When loans of funds,
provisions of guarantees, and
major asset transactions involving
the affiliated enterprise at which
any person referred to in the
preceding paragraph work, they
shall voluntarily explain whether
there is any potential conflict
between them and the company;
they shall perform their duties in
compliance with laws and
regulations required by the
Company.

2. Minimizing incentives to
pursue personal gain

When the Company has an
opportunity for profit, it is the
responsibility of the directors,-
supervisor; and managerial
officers to maximize the
reasonable and proper benefits
that can by obtained by the
company.

The company shall prevent its
directors,-supervisor; and
managerial officers from
engaging in any of the following
activities: 1) Seeking an
opportunity to pursue personal
gain by using company property
or information or taking
advantage of their positions. 2)
Obtaining personal gain by using
company property or information
or taking advantage of their
positions. 3) Competing with the
company.

3. Confidentiality

The Company has a strict
standard subject to consumers and
employees’ privacy and personal
data protection.

The directors, supervisor; and
managerial officers of the
company shall be bound by the
obligation to maintain the
confidentiality of any information
regarding the company itself or its
suppliers and customers, except
when authorized or required by
law to disclose such information.
Confidential information includes
any undisclosed information that,

2). When loans of funds,
provisions of guarantees, and
major asset transactions involving
the affiliated enterprise at which
any person referred to in the
preceding paragraph work, they
shall voluntarily explain whether
there is any potential conflict
between them and the company;
they shall perform their duties in
compliance with laws and
regulations required by the
Company.

2. Minimizing incentives to
pursue personal gain

When the Company has an
opportunity for profit, it is the
responsibility of the directors and
managerial officers to maximize
the reasonable and proper benefits
that can by obtained by the
company.

The company shall prevent its
directors, and managerial officers
from engaging in any of the
following activities: 1) Seeking an
opportunity to pursue personal
gain by using company property
or information or taking
advantage of their positions. 2)
Obtaining personal gain by using
company property or information
or taking advantage of their
positions. 3) Competing with the
company.

3. Confidentiality

The Company has a strict
standard subject to consumers and
employees’ privacy and personal
data protection.

The directors and managerial
officers of the company shall be
bound by the obligation to
maintain the confidentiality of
any information regarding the
company itself or its suppliers and
customers, except when
authorized or required by law to
disclose such information.
Confidential information includes
any undisclosed information that,
if exploited by a competitor or
disclosed, could result in damage

12




if exploited by a competitor or
disclosed, could result in damage
to the company or the suppliers
and customers.

4, Fair trade

Directors, supervser; and
managerial officers shall treat all

suppliers and customers,
competitors, and employees fairly,
and may not obtain improper
benefits through manipulation,
nondisclosure, or misuse of the
information learned by virtue of
their positions, or through
misrepresentation of important
matters, or through other unfair
trading practices.

5. Safeguarding and proper use of
company assets

All directors,-superviser; and
managerial officers have the

responsibility to safeguard
company assets and to ensure that
they can be effectively and
lawfully used for official business
purposes; to avoid any waste of
the assets, negligence in care, or
theft will all directly impact the
company's profitability.

6. Legal compliance

Directors, superviser; and
managerial officers of the

company shall perform their
duties in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations.
The directors, supervisor; and
managerial officer of the company
shall perform their duties in an
objective, honesty, fair and just
manner; The company shall not
only strengthen its compliance
with the Securities and Exchange
Act and other applicable laws and
regulations but also shall
prescribe adoption of codes of
conduct for directors , superviser;
and employees of the Company.

7. Encouraging reporting on
illegal or unethical activities

The company shall raise
awareness of ethics internally and
encourage employees to report to
a company managerial officer,

to the company or the suppliers
and customers.

4, Fair trade

Directors and managerial officers
shall treat all suppliers and
customers, competitors, and
employees fairly, and may not
obtain improper benefits through
manipulation, nondisclosure, or
misuse of the information learned
by virtue of their positions, or
through misrepresentation of
important matters, or through
other unfair trading practices.

5. Safeguarding and proper use of
company assets

All directors and managerial
officers have the responsibility to
safeguard company assets and to
ensure that they can be effectively
and lawfully used for official
business purposes; to avoid any
waste of the assets, negligence in
care, or theft will all directly
impact the company's
profitability.

6. Legal compliance

Directors and managerial officers
of the company shall perform
their duties in compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations.
The directors and managerial
officer of the company shall
perform their duties in an
objective, honesty, fair and just
manner; The company shall not
only strengthen its compliance
with the Securities and Exchange
Act and other applicable laws and
regulations but also shall
prescribe adoption of codes of
conduct for directors and
employees of the Company.

7. Encouraging reporting on
illegal or unethical activities

The company shall raise
awareness of ethics internally and
encourage employees to report to
a company managerial officer,
chief internal auditor, or other
appropriate individual upon
suspicion or discovery of any
activity in violation of a law or
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chief internal auditor, or other
appropriate individual upon
suspicion or discovery of any
activity in violation of a law or
regulation or the code of ethical
conduct. To encourage employees
to report illegal conduct, the
company make employees aware
that the company will use its best
efforts to ensure the safety of
informants and protect them from
reprisals.

8. Disciplinary measures

When a director, superviser-or
managerial officer violates the
code of ethical conduct, the
company shall handle the matter
in accordance with the
disciplinary measures prescribed
in the code, and shall without
delay disclose on the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS)
the title-hame, date of the
violation by the violator, reasons
for the violation, the provisions of
the code violated, and the
disciplinary actions taken. It is
advisable that the company
establish a relevant complaint
system to provide the violator
with remedies. Unintentional
violation of the code of ethical
conduct shall explain the details;
if which has been proved to be
true, the Company shall promptly
issue a clarification on the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS)
based on its materiality.

regulation or the code of ethical
conduct. To encourage employees
to report illegal conduct, the
company shall establish a
concrete whistle-blowing system
and make employees aware that
the company will use its best
efforts to ensure the safety of
informants and protect them from
reprisals.

8. Disciplinary measures

When a director or managerial
officer violates the code of ethical
conduct, the company shall
handle the matter in accordance
with the disciplinary measures
prescribed in the code, and shall
without delay disclose on the
Market Observation Post System
(MOPS) the date of the violation
by the violator, reasons for the
violation, the provisions of the
code violated, and the disciplinary
actions taken. It is advisable that
the company establish a relevant
complaint system to provide the
violator with remedies.
Unintentional violation of the
code of ethical conduct shall
explain the details; if which has
been proved to be true, the
Company shall promptly issue a
clarification on the Market
Observation Post System (MOPS)
based on its materiality.

Article 5

Procedures for exemption

The code of ethical conduct
adopted by a company must
require that any exemption for
directors, supervisers; or
managerial officers from
compliance with the code be
adopted by a resolution of the
board of directors, and that
information on the date on which
the board of directors adopted the
resolution for exemption, Rame;-
title, and the period of, reasons
for, and principles behind the
application of the exemption be
disclosed without delay on the
MOPS, in order that the

Procedures for exemption

The code of ethical conduct
adopted by a company must
require that any exemption for
directors, or managerial officers
from compliance with the code be
adopted by a resolution of the
board of directors, and that
information on the date on which
the board of directors adopted the
resolution for exemption,
objections or reservations of
independent directors, and the
period of, reasons for, and
principles behind the application
of the exemption be disclosed
without delay on the MOPS, in

Revised in
accordance
with
establishment
of an Audit
Committee
and content
revisement
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shareholders may evaluate the
appropriateness of the board
resolution, and to safeguard the
interests of the company.

order that the shareholders may
evaluate the appropriateness of
the board resolution, and to
safeguard the interests of the
company.

Article 6 Method of disclosure Method of disclosure Revised in
The Company shall disclose the The Company shall disclose the accordance
code of ethical conduct it has code of ethical conduct it has with
adopted, and any amendments to | adopted, and any amendments to | amendment
it, in its annual reports and it, on its company website, inits | in laws and
prospectuses and on the MOPS. annual reports and prospectuses regulations.

and on the MOPS.

Article 7 Enforcement Enforcement Revised in
A company's code of ethical A company's code of ethical accordance
conduct, and any amendments to | conduct, and any amendments to | with
it, shall enter into force after it has | it, shall enter into force after it has | establishment
been adopted by the board of been adopted by the board of of audit
directors, delivered-to-each- directors, and submitted to a committee.
superviser; and submitted to a shareholders meeting.
shareholders meeting.

Article 8 Record of Amendment Guidelines for the Adoption of Addition of
Guidelines for the Adoption of Codes of Ethical Conduct for amendment
Codes of Ethical Conduct for Directors and Managers were date and
Directors and Managers were established on March 22, 2012. sequence.

established on March 22, 2012.

The first amendment was made on

March 9, 2020.
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(Attachment 4)
Comparison Table of the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles” of

Brogent Technologies Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description

Article 1 These Principles are adopted to These Principles are adopted to assist | Wording
assist the company to foster a the company to foster a corporate revisement
corporate culture of ethical culture of ethical management and
management and sound sound development, and offer a
development, and offer a reference framework for establishing
reference framework for good commercial practices.
establishing good commercial It adopts ethical corporate
practices. management best practice principles
It adopts ethical corporate applicable to the company’s business
management best practice groups and organizations of the
principles to the company’s company, which comprise the
business groups and organizations | subsidiaries, any foundation to which
of the company, which comprise the company's direct or indirect
the subsidiaries, any foundation to | contribution of funds exceeds 50
which the company's direct or percent of the total funds received,
indirect contribution of funds and other institutions or juridical
exceeds 50 percent of the total persons which are substantially
funds received, and other controlled by the company .
institutions or juridical persons
which are substantially controlled
by the company .

Article 2 When engaging in commercial When engaging in commercial Wording
activities, directors,-supervisers, activities, directors, managers, revisement
managers, and employees or employees, and mandataries of the
persons having substantial control | company or persons having
over such companies ("substantial | substantial control over such
controllers™) shall not directly or | companies (“substantial controllers™)
indirectly offer, promise to offer, | shall not directly or indirectly offer,
request or accept any improper promise to offer, request or accept
benefits, nor commit unethical any improper benefits, nor commit
acts including breach of ethics, unethical acts including breach of
illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary | ethics, illegal acts, or breach of
duty ("unethical conduct") for fiduciary duty (“unethical conduct")
purposes of acquiring or for purposes of acquiring or
maintaining benefits. Parties maintaining benefits.
referred to in the preceding Parties referred to in the preceding
paragraph include civil servants, paragraph include civil servants,
political candidates, political political candidates, political parties
parties or members of political or members of political parties,
parties, state-run or private-owned | state-run or private-owned businesses
businesses or institutions, and the | or institutions, and the directors,
directors, supervisers, managers, | managers, employees or substantial
employees or substantial controllers or other stakeholders.
controllers or other stakeholders.

Article 3 The company shall comply with "Benefits"” in these Principles means | Change the
the Company Act, Securities and | any valuable things, including order of
Exchange Act, Business Entity money, endowments, commissions, article
Accounting Act, Political positions, services, preferential (original
Donations Act, Anti-Corruption treatment or rebates of any type or in | Article 9)

Statute, Government Procurement
Act, Act on Recusal of Public

any name. Benefits received or given
occasionally in accordance with
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Servants Due to Conflicts of
Interest, TWSE/GTSM listing

rules, or other laws or regulations
regarding commercial activities,

as the underlying basic premise
facilitate ethical corporate
management.

to

accepted social customs and that do
not adversely affect specific rights
and obligations shall be excluded.

Article 4 The company shall abide by the The company shall comply with the | Change the
operational philosophies of Company Act, Securities and order of
honesty, transparency and Exchange Act, Business Entity article
responsibility, base policies on the | Accounting Act, Political Donations | (original
principle of good faith and obtain | Act, Anti-Corruption Statute, Article 3)
approval from the board of Government Procurement Act, Act on
directors, and establish good Recusal of Public Servants Due to
corporate governance and risk Conflicts of Interest, TWSE/GTSM
control and management listing rules, or other laws or
mechanism so as to create an regulations regarding commercial
operational environment for activities, as the underlying basic
sustainable development. premise to facilitate ethical corporate

management.

Article 5 In the course of preceding The company shall abide by the Change the
paragraph and developing the operational philosophies of honesty, | order of
prevention programs, the transparency and responsibility, base | article
company shall negotiate with policies on the principle of good faith | (original
staff, important trading and obtain approval from the board Article 9)
counterparties, or other of directors, and establish good and revised
stakeholders; the company shall corporate governance and risk control | in
prescribe the programs to forestall | and management mechanismso as to | accordance
unethical conduct including create an operational environment for | with
operational procedures, sustainable development. amendment
guidelines, and training. in laws and

regulations

Article 6 The company and their respective | The company shall in their own Wording
business group shall clearly ethical management policy clearly revisement
specify in their rules and external | and thoroughly prescribe the specific
documents and the ethical ethical management practices and the
corporate management policies programs to forestall unethical
and the commitment by the board | conduct (“prevention programs"),
of directors and senior including operational procedures,
management on rigorous and guidelines, and training.
thorough implementation of such | When establishing the prevention
policies, and shall carry out the programs, the company shall comply
policies in internal management with relevant laws and regulations of
and in commercial activities. The | the territory where the company and
Company shall request their its business group are operating.
directors and senior management | In the course of developing the
to issue a statement of compliance | prevention programs, the company is
with the ethical management advised to negotiate with staff, labor
policy and continually support and | unions members, important trading
make related adjustments so asto | counterparties, or other stakeholders.
ensure thorough implementation
of its ethical corporate
management policies.

Article 7 The Board of Directors of The company shall_establish a risk Revised in
Company shall exercise the due assessment mechanism against accordance
care of good administrators to unethical conduct, analyze and assess | with
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urge the company to prevent
unethical conduct, always review
the results of the preventive
measures and continually make
adjustments so as to ensure
thorough implementation of its
ethical corporate management
policies.

on a regular basis business activities
within their business scope which are
at a higher risk of being involved in
unethical conduct, and establish
prevention_programs accordingly and

review their adequacy and
effectiveness on a regular basis.

It is advisable for the company to
refer to prevailing domestic and
foreign standards or guidelines in
establishing the prevention programs,
which shall at least include
preventive measures against the
following:

1. Offering and acceptance of bribes.
2. lllegal political donations.

3. Improper charitable donations or
sponsorship.

4. Offering or acceptance of
unreasonable presents or hospitality,
or other improper benefits.

5. Misappropriation of trade secrets
and infringement of trademark rights,
patent rights, copyrights, and other
intellectual property rights.

6. Engaging in unfair competitive
practices.

7. Damage directly or indirectly
caused to the rights or interests,
health, or safety of consumers or
other stakeholders in the course of
research and development,
procurement, manufacture, provision,
or sale of products and services.

amendment
in laws and
regulations

Article 8

The Company and their directors,
SUPErviSers; managers,
employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall
comply with laws and regulations
and the prevention programs when
conducting business.

The company shall request their
directors and senior management to
issue a statement of compliance with
the ethical management policy and
require in the terms of employment
that employees comply with such
policy.

The company and their respective
business group shall clearly specify
in their rules and external documents
and_on the company website the
ethical corporate management
policies and the commitment by the
board of directors and senior
management on rigorous and
thorough implementation of such
policies, and shall carry out the
policies in internal management and
in commercial activities.

The company shall compile
documented information on the
ethical management policy,

Revised in
accordance
with
amendment
in laws and
regulations
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statement, commitment and
implementation mentioned in the first

and second paragraphs and retains
said information properly.

Article 9 "Benefits" in these Principles The company shall engage in Content
means any valuable things, commercial activities in a fair and revisement
including money, endowments, transparent manner based on the
commissions, positions, services, | principle of ethical management.
preferential treatment or rebates of | Prior to any commercial transactions,
any type or in any name. Benefits | the company shall take into
received or given occasionally in | consideration the legality of their
accordance with accepted social agents, suppliers, clients, or other
customs and that do not adversely | trading counterparties and whether
affect specific rights and any of them are involved in unethical
obligations shall be excluded. conduct, and shall avoid any dealings

with persons so involved.

When entering into contracts with
their agents, suppliers, clients, or
other trading counterparties, the
company shall include in such
contracts terms requiring compliance
with ethical corporate management
policy and that in the event the
trading counterparties are involved in
unethical conduct, the company may
at any time terminate or rescind the
contracts.

Article 10 "Unethical conduct " in these When conducting business, the Content
Principles means directly or company and the directors, managers, | revisement
indirectly offer, promise to offer, | employees, mandataries, and
request or accept any improper substantial controllers, may not
benefits, nor commit unethical directly or indirectly offer, promise to
acts including breach of ethics, offer, request, or accept any improper
illegal acts, or breach of fiduciary | benefits in whatever form to or from
duty ("unethical conduct") for clients, agents, contractors, suppliers,
purposes of acquiring or public servants, or other stakeholders.
maintaining benefits.

Article 11 "Demand" in these Principles When directly or indirectly offeringa | Content
means request to be paid; person | donation to political parties or revisement
convicted of corruption when organizations or individuals
requesting to be paid; promise to | participating in political activities, the
offer is not the matter in this company and the directors, managers,
judgment. employees, mandataries, and

substantial controllers, shall comply
with the Political Donations Act and
the own relevant internal operational
procedures, and shall not make such
donations in exchange for
commercial gains or business
advantages.

Article 12 "Bribery" in these Principles When making or offering donations | Content
means directly or indirectly offer, | and sponsorship, the company and revisement

promise to offer, request or accept
any improper benefits including
rebate, commission, facilitating
payment and request, or accept

their directors, supervisors,
managers, employees , mandataries,
and substantial controllers shall
comply with relevant laws and
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any improper benefits in whatever
form to or from clients, agents,
contractors, suppliers, public
servants, or other stakeholders for
purposes of acquiring or
maintaining benefits.

requlations and internal operational
procedures, and shall not
surreptitiously engage in bribery.

Article 13 "Improper benefits" in these The company and their directors, Content
Principles means to meet personal | supervisors, managers, employees, revisement
desire in terms of any valuable mandataries, and substantial
things, including debt waived, controllers shall not directly or
lobby, and preferential treatment indirectly offer or accept any
of any type or in any name. unreasonable presents, hospitality or

other improper benefits to establish
business relationship or influence
commercial transactions.

Article 14 The company and the directors, The company and their directors, Content
SUpervisers, managers, supervisors, managers, employees, revisement
employees, mandataries, and mandataries, and substantial
substantial controllers may not controllers shall observe applicable
directly or indirectly offer, laws and regulations, the company's
promise to offer, request, or internal operational procedures, and
accept any improper benefits in contractual provisions concerning
whatever form. intellectual property, and may not
The companies' employees shall use, disclose, dispose, or damage
not take advantage of their intellectual property or otherwise
positions or influence in the infringe intellectual property rights
clients, agents, contractors, without the prior consent of the
suppliers, public servants, or other | intellectual property rights holder.
stakeholders to bribery or to
obtain improper benefits for
themselves, their family, friends,
or any other person.

Article 15 When engaging in commercial The company shall engage in Content
activities, directors, supervisors,- | business activities in accordance with | revisement
managers, employees, and applicable competition laws and
mandataries of the company or regulations, and may not fix prices,
persons having substantial control | make rigged bids, establish output
over such companies shall not restrictions or quotas, or share or
directly or indirectly offer, or divide markets by allocating
accept any unreasonable presents | customers, suppliers, territories, or
or hospitality, or other improper lines of commerce.
benefits.

Management shall conduct
business in good faith and with
the duties of due care.

Article 16 When directly or indirectly In the course of research and Content
offering a donation to political development, procurement, revisement

parties or organizations or
individuals participating in
political activities, the company
and their directors, supervisors;-
managers, employees, agents, and
substantial controllers, shall not
make such donations in exchange
for business advantages,

manufacture, provision, or sale of
products and services, the company
and the directors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall observe
applicable laws and regulations and
international standards to ensure the
transparency of information about,
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commercial gains or personal
improper benefits.

and safety of, the products and
services. They shall also adopt and
publish a policy on the protection of
the rights and interests of consumers
or other stakeholders, and carry out
the policy in the operations, with a
view to preventing the products and
services from directly or indirectly
damaging the rights and interests,
health, and safety of consumers or
other stakeholders. Where there are
sufficient facts to determine that the
company's products or services are
likely to pose any hazard to the safety
and health of consumers or other
stakeholders, the company shall, in
principle, recall those products or
suspend the services immediately.

Article 17

Political contributions by the
company shall be made in
compliance with the laws and
regulations governing political
contributions; account entries
shall be made for all political
contributions in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations
and relevant procedures for
accounting treatment. The
Political contributions shall be
disclosed and a written record of
that contribution shall be kept

properly.

The directors, managers, employees,
mandataries, and substantial
controllers of the company shall
exercise the due care of good
administrators to urge the company to
prevent unethical conduct, always
review the results of the preventive
measures and continually make
adjustments so as to ensure thorough
implementation of its ethical
corporate management policies.

To achieve sound ethical corporate
management, the company shall
establish a dedicated unit that is
under the board of directors and avail
itself of adequate resources and staff
itself with competent personnel,
responsible for establishing and
supervising the implementation of the
ethical corporate management
policies and prevention programs.
The dedicated unit shall be in charge
of the following matters, and shall
report to the board of directors on a
regular basis_(at least once a year):

1. Assisting in incorporating ethics
and moral values into the company's
business strategy and adopting
appropriate prevention measures
against corruption and malfeasance to
ensure ethical management in
compliance with the requirements of
laws and regulations.

2. Analyzing and assessing on a
regular basis the risk of involvement
in unethical conduct within the

business scope, adopting accordingly
programs to prevent unethical

Content
revisement
and revised
in
accordance
with laws
and
regulations

21




conduct, and setting out in each
program the standard operating
procedures and conduct guidelines
with respect to the company's
operations and business.

3. Planning the internal organization,
structure, and allocation of
responsibilities and setting up
check-and-balance mechanisms for
mutual supervision of the business
activities within the business scope
which are possibly at a higher risk for
unethical conduct.

4. Promoting and coordinating
awareness and educational activities
with respect to ethics policy.

5. Developing a whistle-blowing
system and ensuring its operating
effectiveness.

6. Assisting the board of directors
and management in auditing and
assessing whether the prevention
measures taken for the purpose of
implementing ethical management
are effectively operating, and
preparing reports on the regular
assessment of compliance with
ethical management in operating
procedures.

Article 18 Charitable donations by the The companies and the directors, Content
company and their directors, managers, employees, mandataries revisement
SUPErviSers; managers, and substantial controllers shall
employees, and substantial comply with laws and regulations
controllers shall be given to a and the prevention programs when
valid charitable institution and conducting business.
may not be a disguised form of
bribery. Charitable donations shall
be in accordance with the Article
11, paragraph 4 of Income Tax
Act.
Article 19 Charitable donations and The company shall adopt policies for | Content
contributions by the company preventing conflicts of interest to revisement

shall be made in compliance with
the Income Tax Act and other
related laws and regulations;
account entries shall be made for
all charitable donations and file a
report within a prescribed time
limit. Charitable donations shall
be disclosed and a written record
of that contribution shall be kept

properly.

identify, monitor, and manage risks
possibly resulting from unethical
conduct, and shall also offer
appropriate means for directors,
managers, and other stakeholders
attending or present at board
meetings to voluntarily explain
whether the interests would
potentially conflict with those of the
company.

When a proposal at a given board of
directors meeting concerns the
personal interest of, or the interest of
the juristic person represented by, any
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of the directors, managers, and other
stakeholders attending or present at
board meetings of the company, the
concerned person shall state the
important aspects of the relationship
of interest at the given board meeting.

If his or her participation is likely to
prejudice the interest of the company,

the concerned person may not
participate in discussion of or voting
on the proposal and shall recuse
himself or herself from the discussion

or the voting, and may not exercise
voting rights as proxy for another
director. The directors shall practice
self-discipline and must not support
one another in improper dealings.
The companies' directors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers shall not take
advantage of the positions or
influence in the companies to obtain
improper benefits for themselves, the

spouses, parents, children or any
other person.

Article 20

Work-related conflicts of interests
for the company’s directors,
supervisors; and managers, shall
be take action in accordance with
the company’s ethical
management policy and
regulations governing procedure
for Board of Directors Meetings

The companies shall establish
effective accounting systems and
internal control systems for business
activities possibly at a higher risk of
being involved in an unethical
conduct, not have under-the-table
accounts or keep secret accounts, and
conduct reviews regularly so as to
ensure that the design and
enforcement of the systems are
showing results.

The internal audit unit of the
company shall,_based on the results
of assessment of the risk of
involvement in unethical conduct,
devise relevant audit plans including
auditees, audit scope, audit items,
audit frequency, etc., and examine
accordingly the compliance with the
prevention programs. The internal
audit unit may engage a certified
public accountant to carry out the
audit, and may engage professionals
to assist if necessary.

The results of examination in the
preceding paragraph shall be reported

to senior management and the ethical

management dedicated unit and put
down in writing in the form of an
audit report to be submitted to the
board of directors.

Revised in
accordance
with
amendment
in laws and
regulations
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Article 21

An employee of the company has
a potential conflict of interest
shall report to the supervisor; the
supervisors shall appoint other
unrelated employee to deal with
based on the circumstance.

The company shall establish
operational procedures and guidelines
in accordance with Article 6 hereof to
guide directors, managers,
employees, and substantial
controllers on how to conduct
business. The procedures and
guidelines should at least contain the
following matters:

1. Standards for determining whether
improper benefits have been offered
or accepted.

2. Procedures for offering legitimate
political donations.

3. Procedures and the standard rates
for offering charitable donations or
sponsorship.

4. Rules for avoiding work-related
conflicts of interests and how they
should be reported and handled.

5. Rules for keeping confidential
trade secrets and sensitive business
information obtained in the ordinary
course of business.

6. Regulations and procedures for
dealing with suppliers, clients and
business transaction counterparties
suspected of unethical conduct.

7. Handling procedures for violations
of these Principles.

8. Disciplinary measures on
offenders.

Content
revisement

Article 22

The company’s directors,

i - managers, or
employees shall keep confidential
trade secrets and sensitive
business information obtained in
the ordinary course of business in
accordance with the company’s
Ethical Corporate Management
Best Practice Principles.

The chairperson, general manager, or
senior management of the company
shall communicate the importance of
corporate ethics to its directors,
employees, and mandataries on a
regular basis.

The company shall periodically
organize training and awareness
programs for directors, managers,
employees, mandataries, and
substantial controllers and invite the
companies' commercial transaction
counterparties so they understand the
companies' resolve to implement
ethical corporate management, the
related policies, prevention programs
and the consequences of committing
unethical conduct.

The company shall apply the policies
of ethical corporate management
when creating its employee
performance appraisal system and
human resource policies to establish a
clear and effective reward and

Content
revisement
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discipline system.

Article 23 Before developing a commercial The company shall adopt a concrete | Revised in
relationship with another party, whistle-blowing system and accordance
such as an agent, supplier, scrupulously operate the system. The | with
customer, or other counterparty in | whistle-blowing system shall include | amendment
commercial dealings, the at least the following: in laws and
company shall evaluate the 1. An independent mailbox or regulations
legality and ethical management hotline, either internally established
policy of the party and ascertain and publicly announced or provided
whether the party has a record of | by an independent external
involvement in unethical conduct. | institution, to allow internal and
When entering into a contract external personnel of the company to
with another party, the company submit reports.
shall make observance of the 2. Dedicated personnel or unit
ethical management policy of the | appointed to handle the
company part of the terms and whistle-blowing system. Any tip
conditions of the contract. involving a director or senior
When the counterparty or partner | management shall be reported to the
in company is found to have independent directors. Categories of
engaged in unethical conduct, the | reported misconduct shall be
personnel shall immediately cease | delineated and standard operating
dealing or terminate the contract procedures for the investigation of
with the counterparty. each shall be adopted.

3. Follow-up measures to be adopted
depending on the severity of the
circumstances after investigations of
cases reported are completed. Where
necessary, a case shall be reported to
the competent authority or referred to
the judicial authority.

4. Documentation of case acceptance,
investigation processes, investigation
results, and relevant documents.

5. Confidentiality of the identity of
whistle-blowers and the content of
reported cases, and an undertaking
regarding anonymous reporting.

6. Measures for protecting
whistle-blowers from inappropriate
disciplinary actions due to the
histle-blowing.

7. Whistle-blowing incentive
measures.

When material misconduct or
likelihood of material impairment to
the company comes to the awareness
upon investigation, the dedicated
personnel or unit handling the
whistle-blowing system shall
immediately prepare a report and
notify the independent directors in
written form.

Article 24 The company shall periodically The company shall adopt and publish | Content
organize training and awareness a well-defined disciplinary and revisement
programs for directors, appeal system for handling violations | and original
SUPErviSers; managers, of the ethical corporate management | article was
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employees, mandataries, and rules, and shall make immediate merged into
substantial controllers and invite disclosure on the company's internal | Article 22
the companies' commercial website of the title and name of the

transaction counterparties so they | violator, the date and details of the

understand the companies' resolve | violation, and the actions taken in

to implement ethical corporate response.

management, the related policies,

prevention programs and the

consequences of committing

unethical conduct.

Article 25 The company shall not have The company shall collect Content
under-the-table accounts or keep | guantitative data about the promotion | revisement
secret accounts. of ethical management and and original
The internal audit unit of the continuously analyze and assess the | article was
company shall examine effectiveness of the promotion of merged into
accordingly the compliance with | ethical management policy. The Article 20
the prevention programs and company shall also disclose the
report to the board of directors for | measures taken for implementing
any violations. ethical corporate management, the

status of implementation, the
foregoing quantitative data, and the
effectiveness of promotion on their
company websites, annual reports,
and prospectuses, and shall disclose
their ethical corporate management
best practice principles on the Market
Observation Post System.

Article 26 The company shall disclose its The company shall at all times Content
policy of ethical management on | monitor the development of relevant | revisement
the company's websites, annual local and international regulations
reports, and in other promotional | concerning ethical corporate
materials, and shall make timely management and encourage their
announcements the result of the directors, supervisors, managers, and
implementing ethical corporate employees to make suggestions,
management. based on which the adopted ethical

corporate management policies and
measures taken will be reviewed and
improved with a view to achieving
better implementation of ethical
management.

Article 27 The company shall adopt a The ethical corporate management Original
concrete whistle-blowing system | best practice principles of the article was
and keep confidentiality of the company shall be implemented after | merged into
identity of whistle-blowers and the board of directors grants the Article 23.

the content of reported cases. The
company shall establishment of a
system for penalties and related
disciplinary measures for the
person violations of the ethical
corporate management rules.

If unintentional violation of
ethical corporate management
rules, follow-up measures to be
adopted depending on the severity
of the circumstances.

approval, and shall be reported at a
shareholders' meeting. The same
procedure shall be followed when the
principles have been amended.

The ethical corporate management
best practice principles were
established on June 15, 2012.

The first amendment was made on
December 16, 2019.

The second amendment was made on

March 09, 2020.
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Article 28

The companies shall adopt a
well-defined disciplinary for
handling violations of the ethical
corporate management rules and
report the relevant facts to the
prosecutorial authorities when
such unethical conduct involves
alleged illegality. If there has been
resultant damage to the company,
the company may claim as
damages.

deleted

Original
article was
merged into
Article 24

Article 29

The company shall at all times
monitor the development of
relevant local and international
regulations concerning ethical
corporate management and
encourage the directors,
supervisers,-managers, and
employees to make suggestions,
based on which the adopted
ethical corporate management
policies and measures taken will
be reviewed and improved with a
view to achieving better
implementation of ethical
management.

deleted

Original
article was
merged into
Article 26

Article 30

The ethical corporate management
best practice principles of the
company shall be implemented
after the board of directors grants
the approval, and-shal-besent-to-
the-supervisers-and reported at a

shareholders' meeting.

deleted

Original
article was
merged into
Article 27
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(Attachment 5)
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FXBRESSHMEEH SR
° GrantThOI'nton TEL +B80 753726589  FAX +686 7 537 3589

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Brogent Technologies Inc.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brogent Technologies Inc.
and subsidiaries (the “Group™). which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2019 and 2018, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the yvears then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other independent accountants, (please refer
to the paragraph of Other Matters) the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the consolidated balance sheets of the Group as of December 31, 2019 and
2018, and its consolidated statements of comprehensive income and its consolidated cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial
Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations {(IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations
(SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission in Taiwan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of
Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and generally accepted auditing standards in
Taiwan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in.accordance with The Norm of Professional Fthics for Certified Public
Accountant of Taiwan and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the vear ended December 31, 2019, These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. Key
audit matters in this auditors' report are stated as follows:

Impairment of Accounts Receivable

Whether accounts receivable are impaired is subject to management’s subjective judgment by
determining the recoverable amount of overdue receivables with credit risk, The carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and bad debts are recognized by reference to the
assessment of the customers' credit quality. Therefore, we focus on the receivables with significant
delays in the collection, and the reasonableness of the amount of bad debts recognized by
management.

Grant Thornton Taiwan is certified to the 1ISO 9001 2008 Quality Management

System Standards in "Provision of assurance, tax business compliance and advisory services”.
Grant Thornten Taiwan is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (Grant Thornton Internationat).
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o Grant Thornton

The Group’s main business is the design, production and sales of the simulation entertainment
equipment. In the past two years, the construction contract revenue accounts for more than94.94% of
the annual net revenue. The carrving amount of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2019
accounts for approximately 10.35% of current assets. The amount is significant and represents the
major cash inflows provided by the operating activities of the Group. These involve the
identification and subjective judgment for the construction contract, as a result, construction contract
revenue and related receivable has been identified as a key audit matter,

Please refer to Note 4(16) to the consolidated financial statements for the related accounting policy.
For the carrying amount of accounts receivable, please refer to Note 6(4) 1o the consolidated
financial statements.

In refation to the key audit matter above. our principal audit procedures included to obtain the aging
analysis of accounts receivable, calculate the aging intervals, and sample the original vouchers to
examine whether the receivables are allocated in the aging analysis table appropriately; sample and
deliver confirmation requests; test the collection subsequent to the reporting period to evaluate the
reasonableness of allowance for impairment losses of accounts receivable; and obtain management’s
assessment on allowance for doubtful receivables to examine whether it is in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy, and review the completeness and accuracy of related disclosures made by
management.

Construction Contracts - Total Cost Estimates and the Recognition of the Stage of Completion

The Group estimates total costs of the construction contract for each project and measures the stage
of completion according 1o the proportion of actual construction working hours 10 recognize its
revenue and costs of the construction contract, which is the Group’s main business. Total estimated
costs, total estimated working hours required and actual working progress of the contract involve the
effective implementation of the project contract and management’s subjective judgment. which
contain uncertainty for accounting estimates. Considering that the recognition of the Group's
construction contract revenue and costs has a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements, this subject has been identified as a key audit matter.

Please refer to Note 4(8) to the consolidated financial statements for the accounting policy in regard
1o construction contracts. For net amount for the construction contract and the recognition of revenue
and costs, please refer to Notes 6(5) and 6(23) of the consolidated financial statements,

In relation to the key audit matter above, our principal audit procedures included evaluation on
whether the project construction contract is established in accordance with its relevant internal
control operations: obtain the project cost list and project schedule to examine whether total cost and
working hours are reasonably estimated based on management’s accumulated experience; and the
current optimal situation; review expected changes of significant estimates. sample the original
vouchers to examine whether the actual construction costs incurred have been listed in the
appropriate period; confirm whether the actual stage of completion of the project plan has been
reviewed by the appropriate authorized personnel and whether the construction schedule has been
met; and evaluate the reasonableness of revenue and costs recognized according to the proportion of
actual working progress.
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Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

The value of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is the future recoverable amount
generating from related assets which have not been depreciated or amortized under the situation of
management’s continved operation. Management should evaluate whether there is any indication
that assets may be impaired on each balance sheet date. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset should be estimated. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, management should estimate the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Whether assets have been impaired and the caleulations of the
amount of the impairment loss involve multiple assumptions and accounting estimates, it is
important to verify that the Group is in compliance with IAS 36 and that the carrying amount of
above assets does not exceed the recoverable amount.

Please refer to Notes 4(10), (12) and (13) of the consolidated financial statements for related
accounting policies. For the carrying amount of related assets, please refer to Notes 6(8) and (10) of
the consolidated financial statements.

In relation to the key audit matter mentioned above, our principal audit procedures included to
understand the design and implementation of the method of assessing impairment and its relevant
control system; obtain the impairment assessment made by management on the basis of the
cash-generating unit, and verify the reasonableness of the identification of the impairment as well as
the appropriateness of assumptions used by management in relation to cash-generating unit division,
cash flow forecast, discount rate, ete,

Other Matters — Making Reference to the Audits of Component Auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of a wholly-owned consolidated subsidiary whose
statements are based solely on the reports of other auditors that is included in the consolidated
financial statements. Total nssets of the subsidiary amounted 1o NT$376,236 thousand and
NT$353,841 thousand, which constituting 7.31% and 8.39% of consolidated total assets as of
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively, and operating income was NT$230,821 thousand and
NT$91.970 thousand, which constituting 11.09% and 5.62% of conselidated total operating income
for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

We have also audited the idividual financial statements of Brogem Technologies Inc. for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 on which we have issued an unqualified opinion with other
matter paragraph, as reference,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securitics Issuers, IFRS, IAS, IFRIC, and SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial
Supervisory Commission in Taiwan, the Republic of China. and for such internal control as
management determines 8 neeessary 1o enable the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as 4 going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to goeing
concern and using the poing concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those ¢harged with governance, including supervisars, are responsible for oversecing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable asssurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonahle assurance is a high level of assurance. but
is not a guarantee, that an audit conducted is in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards of in Taiwan, the Republic of China, and will detect a material misstutement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, are expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards of ‘Taiwan, the Republic
of China, we have exercised professional judgment and maintained professional skepticism
throughout the audit, In addition, we also;

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks: and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than those resulting from
error, as frawl may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 1o the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management assessment on Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Based on the audit evidence obtained, determine whether a material uncertainty
exists related 10 events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw atention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to medify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern,

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
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including the disclosures; and whether the conselidated financial statements truly capture all
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieve the fair presentation of the Group's
financial performance and operation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence reparding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion,

We communicate with those in charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those in charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with those in charged
with governance with all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and are therefore the Key audit matters. We deseribe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Grank Theendon.,

Grant Thornton

March 9, 2020
Kaohsiung, Taiwan
(File No. BO02.20F0010)

The accompanying consalidated financial statements are not intended 1o present the consolidated financial
pasition, financial performance and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepred
in countries and jurisdictions other than those other than Taiwan. The standards, procedures and practices in
Taiwan governing the audit of such financial siatements may differ from those generally accepted in countries
and furisdictions other than those of Tatwan, Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements and independent auditors ' report are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the
accounting principles or auditing standardy generally accepted in Tarwan and their applications in practice.
As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, Grant Thornton will not accept any
liability for the use of, or reliance on, the Englisk transtation or for any ervors or misundersiandings that may
derive fram the translarion of Grouwp's consalidated financial statements, including notes to the consalidated
financial statements,
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BROGENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31,2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Items Amount % Amount %
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6(1)) $T74.817 16 £660,349 16
Financial assets at fair value through profit or Joss-current (Note 6(2)) 253,176 5 459,056 11
Financial assets at smortized cost-current (Notes 6(3) and §) 277,637 s 304,864 7
Notes and accounts receivable, net (Note 6(4)) 310,299 6 326,625 8
Construction receipts reosivable (Note 6(5)) 943,550 18 529353 12
Income tax assets 24 - 61 .
Inventorics (Note 6(6)) 232,958 5 200,016 5
Prepayments 227425 4 162,3%0 4
Other current assets (Notes 6(12) and 8) 36,953 I 31,148 1
Total cument assets 3,056,839 60 2,673,862 64
Noncurrent Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss-noncurrent (Note 6(2)) 297,964 6 134,530 3
Financial asscts at amartized cost-noncurreat (Notes 6(3) and 8) 65,160 1 59,175 2
Investments accounted for using equity method (Note 6(7)) 3,029 z 5, 5
Property, plant and equipment (Notes 6(8) and 8) 1,045,007 20 1,066,459 25
Right-of-use assets {Note 6(%)) 340,051 7 - -
Intangible assets (Note 6(10)) 232,259 s 166,597 4
Deferred income tax assets {Note 6{26)) 20,814 & 12,618 s
Refundable deposits 12,725 a 1L719 2
Prepayments for Lang-Term Investments in Stocks 4,537 . . =
Other noncurrent assets (Notes 6(12) and 8) 70,155 1 85,079 2
Total noncurrent assets 2,081,741 40 1,541,949 36
Total Assets $5,148,580 100 §4215811 100
The ammm notes are an integral pest of the consolidated financial statements, (Continued)

33



BROGENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018
(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

December 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Items A t % Amount %
Current Lisbilities
Short-term loans (Note 6(13)) $191,340 4 $- -
Notes payable 14,001 - 11,328 -
Accounts payable 84,711 2 109,690 3
Construction receipts payable (Note 6(5)) 134,295 3 74,294 2
Other payables (Note 6(14)) 145,056 3 110,080 3
Trcome tax payable 53,952 I 39,319 1
Lease liabilities, cumrent 37,135 1 - -
Long-term liabilities-current portion (Note 6(15)) 252,626 5 108,927 3
Other current lishilities 30,115 - 79,185 2
Total current linbilities 943,231 19 532,823 14
Nencurrent Liabilities
Long-term bank loans (Note 6(15)) 815,541 16 755,343 18
Deferred income tax linbilities (Nete 6(26)) 32,549 - 16,008 -
Lease liabilities, noncurrent 306,990 6 - -
Net defined benefit linbilities-noncurreat (Note 6{16)) 8,739 - 8,165 -
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,164,219 22 783,516 18
Total Liabilitics 2,107,450 41 1,316,339 32
Equiry Atributable To Sharcholders of the Parent
Cupital stock
Common stock (Note {17)) 557,474 11 530,928 13
Capital surplug
Additional paid-in capital 1,719,817 33 1,779,281 42
From convertible bonds (Note 6(20)) 247,223 5 247223 [
From others 1,116 - 1,219 -
Total capita! surplus (Notes 6(18) and (1)) 1,968,156 38 2,020,723 48
Retained eamings
Legal rescrve 90,809 2 73,817 2
Special reserve - - 4,049 -
Unappropriated camings (Note 6{19)) 366,375 7 192,647 4
Total retained eamings 457,184 9 270513 6
Other equity
Forelgn Cusrenty Transation Reserve-subsidiaries accounted for
using equity method (14,280) - 7,631 -
Foretgn Currenty Transation Reserve-tssocintes and joint ventures
accounted for using equity method (577) - {619) -
Total other eguity (14,857) - 7,012 -
Equity Attributable To Shareholders of The Parent 2,967,957 58 2,836,176 67
Non-controlling Interests (Note 6(21)) 73,173 1 63,206 1
Total Equity 3,041,130 39 2,899,472 68
Total Linhilities and Equity $5,148,580 100 Sdeli.lll 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial st
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BROGENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2019 AND 2018
{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings per Share)

2019 2018
Items Amount Amoant
Net Revenue (Note 6{23)) $2,080,44) 100 $1,637,438 100
Cast of Revenae (Note 6(25)) (1,078,081) (52) (916,196) (56)
Gross Profit 1,002,350 48 721,242 a4
Cperating Expenses
Selling nd marketing {99.522) (5) {56,277) (3
General and administrative {295.524) {14) (257,083) (16)
Research and developenent (172,403) (8) (118.370) Y]
Expected credit losses (8,302) (1) - -
Total operating expenses (Notes 6(25) and 7) {581,551) {28) (431,730) (26)
Opemting Income 420,809 20 288,512 14
Nem-opeeating Income and Losses
Other gains and losses (Notes 6(24) and 7) w023 3 33657 !
Interest income 10,331 - 11,358 -
Interest expense (23,727) m (10,713)
Loss from investment in and joint 4
for using equity method (Note 6(7)) (5,535) - (2,657) =
Tetal noa-opersting income and loss 51,082 2 31,615 1
Incoire Before [ncome Tax 471,501 22 321,127 19
Income Tax Expenses (Note 6(26)) (88,091) (4) (62,709) {4)
Net Income 383,810 18 258418 15
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Treens thar will noc be reclaasified subsequenty to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benedit plans (501) - (245) -
Income tax beaefit related to components of other comprebensive
income that will not be reclassified subsequently 100 - 52 -
[nemns that may be reclassified subsequently to peodit or loss
Exchange diffe; arizing on tramslation of forzign op (21,883) () 11,078 1
Exchange differances arising on lation of foreign op
of nssociates and joint ventures accounted for using equity
method({Noie 6(7)) 42 21 -
Income tax expense refated to consponents of other compuehensive
income that may be reclassified subsequently (Notz 6(26)) - - .
Other comprehensive income (loas ) for the year, net of income tax (22242) ) 10,8%9 1
Total Comprehensive Incame (Loss) For The Year $361,568 17 $269,317 15
Net Income Attributable To :
Sharelolders of the parent $366,525 17 $257,168 15
Nea-conmolling interests 17,285 1 1,250 .
$383,810 18 $258418 15
Total Comprehensive Income (loss) Attributshle To
Sharehalders of the parent $344 255 16 $268,032 16
Nearcontolling interests 17313 1 1,285 .
$361,568 17 $269317 16
Basic camings per share (Note &27)) $4.57 $4a61
Diluted eamings per share (Note 6(27)) $6 57 $4561

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the conselidnted fisancial staterments.
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BROGENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN ROQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

(1 Thousands of New Talwan Dallars)

Equity Atribaeable to Shareholders of the Parent

Capital Stock Retained Exrmings Oeher Equity
Unapprogriated  Formign Carrency Am:aq:th Noo-contralling
. g o "
Irems Cammon Stock  Capital Surplus  Legal Reserve  Special Reserve Eant Teaseation R Treasury Shaves oy o 1 Total Equity
e Parent

Balance ot January 1, 2019 $530.923 $2,027,723 $73,.817 $4.049 $192,647 §7012 3 $2,336,176 $63.296 $2,399472
Appropriations of prior year’s eamnings

Legal reserve - - 16,992 - (16,992) - = o - .

Cash dividends - (32918) - - (179,453) - . 212371) (212371}

Stock dividends 26,566 (26,546) - - - - . v - -

Reversml of special reserve . - . (4,049} 4,049 - - - - -
Net income in 2019 - - - - 366,525 - - 366,525 17285 383 810
Other comprehensive income (Joss) in 2019 . - - - (#01) (21,869) - (22,270) 28 (22,242)
Total comprehensive income in 2019 - - - - 356,120 (21,859) - 344,255 17313 361,568
From ditferences between equity purchase price and

carrying amount arising from actusl acquisition or

disposal of subsidiaries - (372) - - - - (372) {5,167) (5,539}
Shere-based payment transactions - 269 - - - - - 269 66 338
Cash dividends paid % non-controlling Interests . . - - . - - - (2,335) (2,33%)
Ealance at December 31, 2018 3557474 S 1 Mlm 3. 8366&75 w 5 8}‘_967,957 $73,173 uglino
Balance at January 1, 2018 3446,780 $2,053,485 47250 £751 $318,257 ($4,049) ($115,476) 52,746,998 $58722 $2,805,720

Effect of rerospective spplication - - . - (2,248) - = (2,248) . (2,248)

Adusted balance at Janusry 1, 2018 446,780 2,053 485 47250 751 316,009 {3.049) (115,476} 2,744,750 58722 2,803472
Appropriations of prior year's eamings

Legal reserve - - 26,567 - (26,367) = < - - .

Special reserve - . . 4,048 (4,049) - - - - -

Cash dividends - - - - (176,976) - - (176,976) - (176,976}

Stock dividends 83,488 - - . (£8,288) . . - . -

Reversal of special reserve - - - (751) 51 - - - - -
Adyustments to share of changes In equities of

associates and joint ventures - (100) - - - - - (100) - (100)

Net income in 2018 - - - 257,168 - - 257,168 1,250 258418
Other comprehensive income (Joss) in 2018 - = - - (197) 11,051 - 10,864 35 10,399
Tos) compeehensive income in 2018 - - - - 156,971 11,061 - 268,032 1285 268317
Retirement of treasury shares {4,300) {26,132) - - {85,004) - 115476 - - -
Share-based payment tanssctioes - 70 . - . . . L1 69 539
Increzs= in noo-coatralling imterests - - . . - . . . 5,511 5511
Cash dividends pasd 10 non-cossrotling inferests - - - . - - - - (2.291) (2,251)
Balance at December 31, 2018 _ss92 _ momgn STI8IT_ $4,08 $192,547 $7.012 s 52,83%,176 $E3706 52,899,472

The sccampanying motes are an integral part of the comsolidated financial statements.
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BROGENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Items 2019 2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activitics
Income Before Income Tax $471,901 $321,127
Adjustments for:
The items of gains and losscs:
Deprecintion 111,161 55,338
Amontization 42,170 38,393
Expected credit losses 9,302 -
Loss on financial assets ot fair value through profit or loss (55,727) 276
Interest expense 23,727 10,713
Interest income (10331) (11,368)
Compensation cost of share-based payment trangactions 335 539
Loss on mvestment in associates nand joint ventures accounted for using equity method 5,535 2,697
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (554) -
Property, plant and equipment transferred 10 expense 1,476 -
Unrealized currency exchange gains or loss 23,364 (13,886)
Total adjustments for the items of gains and losses 150,458 82,702
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at fiir value through profit or loss 225,594 (233,239)
Decrease {(increase) in notes and accounts receivable 10,086 (85,599)
Decrease (increase) in construction receipts receivable (423,499) (89,332)
Decrease {increase) in inventories (30,742) (10,901)
Decrease (increase) in prepayments (66,186) (2,803)
Decrease (increase) in other current assets (5,959) (25,090)
Increase (decrease) in notes paysble 2,673 (4,484)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (24,979) 74,579
Increase (decrease) in construction receipts payable 60,001 (19.247)
Increase (decrease) in other paysbles 38,096 7311
Increase (decrease) in other current liabilities (49,070) 76,578
Increase (decrease) in net defined benefit liabilities-noncurrent 74 81
Net changes in operating assets and lizbilities (264,211) (312,146)
Total adjustments (113,753) (229,444)
Casgh genernted from (used in) operations 358,148 91,683
Income taxes paid (64,576) (41,083)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitics 293,572 50,600
(Continued)
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BROGENT TECHNOLOGIES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2019 AND 2018
{In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Items 2019 2018
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Acquisitions of financial assets at fair valoe through profit or loss-noncurrent (138,690) (114,048)
Acquisitions of fmancinl assets at amortized cost-cyrrent 20,138 (66,306)
Acquisitions of fmancial assets at amortzzed cost-noncurrent (7,645) {2,817)
Acqusitions of investments accounted for using equity method (5,539) -
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment (58,420) (166,438)
Disposals of property, plant and equipment 1,249 -
Decrease (mcrease) in refundable deposits (1,006) (926)
Acqusitions of intangible assets {50,730} (72,875)
Decrease (increase) in other non-current assets (39,698) (3,270)
Decrease (incrense) in prepayments for Long-Term Investments in Stocks (4,537) -
Interest received 10,485 11,092
Net cash gencrated from (used in) investing activities (274,393) (415,587)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Increase (decrease) in short-term bank Joans 191,340 -
Procesds from long-¢erm bank lonns 320,050 520,000
Repayments of long-term bank loans (120,153) (32,780)
Cash payments for the principal portion of the Jease lability (43,275) -
Cash dividends paid (212,371) (176,976)
Interest paid (16,293) (10,549)
Cash dividend paid to noncontroiling interests (2,335) (2,291)
In {d yin trolling i - 5,511
Net cash (used in) provided by finencing sctivities 116,963 302,915
Effect of Exchinge Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivaients (21,674) 11,774
Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 114,468 {50,298)
Cash arxd Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 660,349 710,647
Cash andd Cash Equivalents, End of Year $774.817 §660,349

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidsted financial statements.
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(Attachment 6)
Comparison Table of the "Articles of Incorporation” of Brogent Technologies Inc.
before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description

Article 1 The Company is constituted in | The Company is constituted in | Addition of
accordance with the Company accordance with the Company | English name to
Act, and shall be known as Act, and shall be known as meet operational
Brogent Technologies Inc. Brogent Technologies Inc. needs.

Article 8 The Company's stocks shall be | The Company's stocks shall be | Revised in
registered, and signed or sealed- | registered, and affixed with accordance with

i - The signature or seal of the director | amendment in
stocks shall be issued following | representing a company. The laws and
proper certification procedures | stock shell be issued following | regulations.
in accordance with the law. certification by the bank which
According to-Article 162-2 of is competent to certify stock
the-Company-Act-stocks-issued- | under the law, and are not
by-the Company-after-the public- | required to be printed. The
offering-are not required to be Company, however, should
printed. The Company, contact the securities
however, should contact the depository and custodian
securities depository and institution for registration of
custodian institution for the share certificates.
registration of the share
certificates.

Article 8-1 The bought back shares to be | Revised in
transferred by the Company, accordance with
employee stock option, amendment in
restricted employee stock, and | laws and
the new shares reserved for regulations.
employees subscription in the
Company’s share offering
include employees of
subsidiaries of the Company
meeting certain specific
qualifications and the Board or
the person duly designated by
the Board is authorized to
decide such qualifications and
allocation.

Article 9 The entries in the List of The entries in the List of To comply with
Shareholders shall not be altered | Shareholders shall not be the name of
within the period specified in altered within the period regulations.
Avrticle 165 of the Company Act. | specified in Article 165 of the
The Company shall administer | Company Act. The Company
all stock-related operations in shall administer all
accordance with the Company stock-related operations in
act and the "Regulations accordance with the Company
Governing the Administration of | act and the "Regulations
Shareholder Services of Public | Governing the Handling of
Companies" promulgated by the | Stock Administration of
competent authority. Shareholder Services of Public

Companies" promulgated by
the competent authority.

Chapter 4 Directors and Supervisors Directors and Audit Revised in
Committee. accordance with

establishment of
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audit committee.

Article 14 The Company shall have five-te- | The Company shall have seven | Revised in
seven-Directors and ene-te-three- | to nine Directors, who are accordance with
Supervisors, who are elected elected during shareholders' amendment in
during shareholders' meetings meetings from among persons | laws and
from among persons of adequate | of adequate capacity to each regulations and
capacity to each serve atermof | serve a term of three years. establishment of
three years. Their terms of Their terms of service may be | an audit
service may be renewed if they | renewed if they are re-elected | committee.
are re-elected in the following in the following election. The
election. The total amount of total amount of shares held by
shares held by all Directors and- | all Directors of the Company
Supervisors of the Company shall be determined in
shall be determined in accordance with regulations of
accordance with regulations of | the competent authority
the competent authority responsible for securities.
responsible for securities. The aforementioned Directors
The aforementioned Directors shall consist of three
shall consist of no less thantwe | Independent Directors. A
Independent Directors. A candidate nomination system
candidate nomination system shall be adopted in the election
shall be adopted in the election | and the Independent Directors
and the Independent Directors shall be elected by the
shall be elected by the shareholders meeting from the
shareholders meeting from the list of candidates. Method of
list of candidates.-Fhe-guidelines | nomination shall be governed
forqualifications,shareholdings; | by the Article 192-1 of the
restrictions-on-concurrent-posts;- | Company Act.
nomination, election-and-any- The Company shall have the
other matters to be complied audit committee which shall be
with-by-the-Independent composed of all independent
Directors-of the Company-shal- | directors, consist of no less
be-prescribed-by-the relevant- than three independent
regulations of the competent directors, one of whom shall
autherity-in-charge-of seedrities: | be the convener.
From-year 2020, the Company- | The Company may purchase
shall have seven to nine liability insurance for the
Directors—TFhe-aforesaid Board- | Directors during their term of
of Directors-must-have-at-least- | office based on the
three-independent-directors—The- | compensation liabilities
Board-of Directors-is-authorized- | associated with their respective
to-determine the numberof- business accountabilities. The
Directors. Board of Directors is
The Company may purchase authorized to determine the
liability insurance for the insurance coverage based on
Directors and-Supervisers industry practices and
during their term of office based | standards.
on the compensation liabilities
associated with their respective
business accountabilities. The
Board of Directors is authorized
to determine the insurance
coverage based on industry
practices and standards.

Article 14-1 The Company's Directors and- The Company's Directors are Revised in
Supervisers are elected using the | elected using the single accordance with
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single cumulative voting

cumulative voting method.

establishment of

method. Every share is vested Every share is vested with an audit
with voting rights that is voting rights that is equivalent | committee.
equivalent to the number of to the number of Directors to

Directors and-Supervisors-to be | be elected. The votes can be

elected. The votes can be concentrated on one candidate

concentrated on one candidate or distributed among several

or distributed among several candidates. Candidates with

candidates. Candidates with the | the highest numbers of votes

highest numbers of votes are are elected Directors.

elected Directors-e+-Supervisers.

Article 15 The Board of Directors shall be | The Board of Directors shall Content
comprised of the Directors of be comprised of the Directors | revisement
the Company. Fhe Beard-of of the Company. The chairman
Directors-shall-appoint-one- of the Board shall be elected
Chairperson-of the Beard-during | by and among the directors by
a-board-meeting-with more than | a majority of directors present
two-thirds of directors present- | at a meeting attended by more
and-with-the-approval-of-mere- | than two-thirds of directors. As
than half of all attending necessary, a vice chairman
Directors. The-Chairperson shall | may be elected by and among
represent the Company the directors in the same
externally. manner. The chairman of the

Board shall represent the
Company externally.

Article 16-1 Notices for Board of Directors Notices for Board of Directors | Revised in
meetings shall be distributed to | meetings shall be distributed to | accordance with
the Directors and-Supervisors at | the Directors at least seven establishment of
least seven days before the days before the meeting. The an audit
meeting. The purpose of the purpose of the meeting shall be | committee.
meeting shall be clearly stated in | clearly stated in the notice.
the notice. However, a Board of | However, a Board of Directors
Directors meeting may be meeting may be convened at
convened at any time in the any time in the event of an
event of an emergency. The emergency. The notice for
notice for meetings may be meetings may be
communicated through written, | communicated through
fax, email, or other methods. written, fax, email, or other

methods.

Article 18 Al Directors and-Supervisors- All Directors shall be entitled | Revised in
shall be entitled to remuneration | to remuneration for their accordance with
for their execution of duties execution of duties regardless | establishment of
regardless of profits or losses. of profits or losses. The Board | an audit
The Board of Directors is of Directors is authorized to committee.
authorized to determine determine remuneration after
remuneration after considering considering their contribution
their contribution to the to the Company and the
Company and the industry’s industry’s prevailing rates.
prevailing rates.

Article 20 The Company's accounting The Company's accounting Revised in

period begins from January 1
and ends on December 31 of
each year. At the end of each
fiscal year, the Board of
Directors of the Company shall,
in accordance with relevant laws

period begins from January 1
and ends on December 31 of
each year. At the end of each
fiscal year, the Board of
Directors of the Company
shall, in accordance with

accordance with
establishment of
an audit
committee and
Content
revisement
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and regulations, prepare and
submit (1) a Business Report (2)
Financial Statements (3)
Proposals on distribution of
earnings or compensation of

deficits, etc. to the Supervisers-

relevant laws and regulations,
prepare and submit (1) a
Business Report (2) Financial
Statements (3) Proposals on
distribution of earnings or
compensation of deficits, etc.

forauditing-atleast thirty-days- | to the shareholders at the
before-the-annual-sharehelders- | ordinary meeting of

meeting, during which the shareholders for their
reports/statements-are-submitted- | acceptance in accordance with
for ratification. the legal procedures.

Article 21 In the event the Company makes | In the event the Company Revised in
a profit during the fiscal year, it | makes a profit during the fiscal | accordance with
shall set aside five (5) to fifteen | year, it shall set aside five (5) | establishment of
(15) percent of the profits for to fifteen (15) percent of the an audit
employee remuneration. The profits for employee committee.
remuneration for Directors and- | remuneration. The
Supervisers shall be no higher remuneration for Directors
than two percent. However, shall be no higher than two
priority shall be given to funds percent. However, priority
reserved for compensation of the | shall be given to funds
Company’s cumulative losses, if | reserved for compensation of
any.The employee remuneration | the Company’s cumulative
specified in the preceding losses, if any. The employee
paragraph may be distributed in | remuneration specified in the
shares or cash and the recipients | preceding paragraph may be
may include employees of distributed by
subordinate companies meeting | parent-subsidiary mutually in
certain criteria, which the Board | shares or cash and the
of Directors shall be authorized | recipients may include
to determine at its discretion. employees of subordinate

companies or controlling
companies meeting certain
criteria and allocation method,
which the Board of Directors
shall be authorized to
determine at its discretion.
Before establishment of an
audit committee, distribution
ratio of remuneration of
supervisors is based on
preceding paragraph.

Article 25 The Articles of Incorporation The Articles of Incorporation | Addition of
were established on October 22, | were established on October amendment
2001. 22, 2001. date and
Omitted. Omitted. sequence.

The eighteenth amendment was
made on May 29, 2018.
The nineteenth amendment was
made on May 29, 2019.

The nineteenth amendment
was made on May 29, 2019.
The twentieth amendment was

made on May 28, 2020.
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(Attachment 7)
Comparison Table of the " Rules of Procedure for Shareholders Meetings"” of Brogent
Technologies Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description
Article 3 Unless otherwise provided by Unless otherwise provided by Revised in
law or regulation, the law or regulation, the accordance with
Company's shareholders Company's shareholders amendment in
meetings shall be convened by meetings shall be convened by laws and

the Board of Directors.

The Company shall prepare
electronic versions of the
shareholders meeting notice and
proxy forms, and the origins of
and explanatory materials
relating to all proposals,
including proposals for
ratification, matters for
deliberation, or the election or
dismissal of Directors o+
Supervisers; and upload them to
the Market Observation Post
System (MOPS) at least 30 days
before the date of an annual
shareholders meeting or at least
15 days before the date of an
extraordinary shareholders
meeting. The Company shall
prepare electronic versions of
the shareholders meeting agenda
and supplemental meeting
materials and upload them to the
MOPS at least 21 days before
the date of the annual
shareholders meeting or at least
15 days before the date of the
extraordinary shareholders
meeting. In addition, at least 15
days before the date of the
shareholders meeting, the
Company shall also have
prepared the shareholders
meeting agenda and
supplemental meeting materials
and made them available for
review by shareholders at any
time. The meeting agenda and
supplemental materials shall
also be displayed at the
Company and the professional
shareholder services agent
designated thereby as well as
being distributed on-site at the
meeting place. The reasons for
convening a shareholders
meeting shall be specified in the

the Board of Directors.

The Company shall prepare
electronic versions of the
shareholders meeting notice and
proxy forms, and the origins of
and explanatory materials
relating to all proposals,
including proposals for
ratification, matters for
deliberation, or the election or
dismissal of Directors and
upload them to the Market
Observation Post System
(MOPS) at least 30 days before
the date of an annual
shareholders meeting or at least
15 days before the date of an
extraordinary shareholders
meeting. The Company shall
prepare electronic versions of
the shareholders meeting agenda
and supplemental meeting
materials and upload them to the
MOPS at least 21 days before
the date of the annual
shareholders meeting or at least
15 days before the date of the
extraordinary shareholders
meeting. In addition, at least 15
days before the date of the
shareholders meeting, the
Company shall also have
prepared the shareholders
meeting agenda and
supplemental meeting materials
and made them available for
review by shareholders at any
time. The meeting agenda and
supplemental materials shall
also be displayed at the
Company and the professional
shareholder services agent
designated thereby as well as
being distributed on-site at the
meeting place. The reasons for
convening a shareholders
meeting shall be specified in the

regulations and
establishment of
an audit
committee.
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meeting notice and public
announcement. With the consent
of the addressee, the meeting
notice may be given in
electronic form.

Gempan%epawmatter under
Avrticle 185, Paragraph 1 of the
Company Act, and-Articles-26-1-
and-43-6-of the Securitiesand-
Exehange-Act shall be set out in
the notice of the reasons for
convening the shareholders
meeting. None of the above
matters may be raised through
an extempore motion.
Shareholder(s) holding one
percent (1%) or more of the total
number of outstanding shares of
the Company may submit a
written proposal for discussion
at an annual shareholders'
meeting. Such proposals,
however, are limited to one item
only, and no proposal containing
more than one item will be
included in the meeting agenda.
In addition, when the
circumstances of any
Subparagraph of Article 172-1,
Paragraph 4 of the Company Act
apply to a proposal submitted by
a shareholder, the Board of
Directors may exclude it from
the agenda.

Prior to the book closure date
before a regular shareholders
meeting is held, the Company
shall publicly announce that it
will receive shareholder
proposals, and the location and
time period for their submission;
the period for submission of
shareholder proposals may not
be less than 10 days.
Shareholder-submitted
proposals are limited to 300
words, and no proposal
containing more than 300 words
will be included in the meeting
agenda. The shareholder making
the proposal shall be present in

meeting notice and public
announcement. With the consent
of the addressee, the meeting
notice may be given in
electronic form. Matters
pertaining to election or
discharge of directors, alteration
of the Articles of Incorporation,
reduction of capital, application
for the approval of ceasing its
status as a public company,
approval of competing with the
company by directors, surplus
profit distributed in the form of
new shares, reserve distributed
in the form of new shares,
dissolution, merger, spin-off , or
any matters as set forth in
Paragraph |, Article 185 hereof
shall be itemized in the causes
or subjects to be described and
the essential contents shall be
explained in the notice to
convene a meeting of
shareholders, and shall not be
brought up as extemporary
motions; the essential contents
may be posted on the website
designated by the competent
authority in charge of securities
affairs or the company, and such
website shall be indicated in the
above notice. All directors of a
company are re-elected and its
start date is defined in the notice
of reasons for the shareholders
meeting and shall not be brought
up again as extemporary
motions or in any matters after
re-election. Shareholder(s)
holding one percent (1%) or
more of the total number of
outstanding shares of the
Company may submit a written
proposal for discussion at an
annual shareholders' meeting.
Such proposals, however, are
limited to one item only, and no
proposal containing more than
one item will be included in the
meeting agenda; however, a
shareholder proposal proposed
for urging a company to
promote public interests or
fulfill its social responsibilities
may still be included in the list
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person or by proxy at the annual
shareholders meeting and take
part in discussion of the
proposal. Prior to the date for
issuance of notice of a
shareholders meeting, the
Company shall inform the
shareholders who submitted
proposals of the proposal
screening results, and shall list
in the meeting notice the
proposals that conform to the
provisions of this Article. At the
shareholders meeting the Board
of Directors shall explain the
reasons for exclusion of any
shareholder proposals not
included in the agenda.

of proposals to be discussed at a
regular meeting of shareholders
by the board of directors. In
addition, when the
circumstances of any
Subparagraph of Article 172-1,
Paragraph 4 of the Company Act
apply to a proposal submitted by
a shareholder, the Board of
Directors may exclude it from
the agenda.

Prior to the book closure date
before a regular shareholders
meeting is held, the Company
shall publicly announce that it
will receive shareholder
proposals_in writing or by way
of electronic transmission, and
the location and time period for
their submission; the period for
submission of shareholder
proposals may not be less than
10 days. Shareholder-submitted
proposals are limited to 300
words, and no proposal
containing more than 300 words
will be included in the meeting
agenda. The shareholder making
the proposal shall be present in
person or by proxy at the annual
shareholders meeting and take
part in discussion of the
proposal. Prior to the date for
issuance of notice of a
shareholders meeting, the
Company shall inform the
shareholders who submitted
proposals of the proposal
screening results, and shall list
in the meeting notice the
proposals that conform to the
provisions of this Article. At the
shareholders meeting the Board
of Directors shall explain the
reasons for exclusion of any
shareholder proposals not
included in the agenda.

Article 6

The Company shall specify in
its shareholders meeting notices
the time during which
shareholder attendance
registrations will be accepted,
the place to register for
attendance, and other matters of
attention.

The time during which

The Company shall specify in its
shareholders meeting notices the
time during which shareholder
attendance registrations will be
accepted, the place to register
for attendance, and other matters
of attention.

The time during which
shareholder attendance

Revised in

accordance with
establishment of
audit committee.
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shareholder attendance
registrations will be accepted, as
stated in the preceding
paragraph, shall be at least 30
minutes prior to the time the
meeting commences. The place
at which attendance registrations
are accepted shall be clearly
marked and a sufficient number
of suitable personnel shall be
assigned to handle the
registrations.

Shareholders and their proxies
(collectively, "shareholders™)
shall attend shareholders
meetings upon presentation of
attendance passes, registration
cards, or other proof of
attendance. Solicitors soliciting
proxy forms shall also bring
personal identification
documents for verification.

The Company shall furnish the
attending shareholders with an
attendance book to sign, or
attending shareholders may hand
in a registration card in lieu of
signing in.

The Company shall furnish
attending shareholders with the
proceedings manual, annual
report, attendance pass,
speaker's slips, voting slips, and
other meeting materials. Where
there is an election of Directors
or-Supervisors, pre-printed
ballots shall also be furnished.
When the government or a
juristic person is a shareholder,
it may be represented by more
than one representative at a
shareholders meeting. When a
juristic person is appointed to
attend as proxy, it may designate
only one person to represent it in
the meeting.

registrations will be accepted, as
stated in the preceding
paragraph, shall be at least 30
minutes prior to the time the
meeting commences. The place
at which attendance registrations
are accepted shall be clearly
marked and a sufficient number
of suitable personnel shall be
assigned to handle the
registrations.

Shareholders and their proxies
(collectively, "shareholders™)
shall attend shareholders
meetings upon presentation of
attendance passes, registration
cards, or other proof of
attendance. Solicitors soliciting
proxy forms shall also bring
personal identification
documents for verification.

The Company shall furnish the
attending shareholders with an
attendance book to sign, or
attending shareholders may hand
in a registration card in lieu of
signing in.

The Company shall furnish
attending shareholders with the
proceedings manual, annual
report, attendance pass,
speaker's slips, voting slips, and
other meeting materials. Where
there is an election of

directors , pre-printed ballots
shall also be furnished.

When the government or a
juristic person is a shareholder,
it may be represented by more
than one representative at a
shareholders meeting. When a
juristic person is appointed to
attend as proxy, it may designate
only one person to represent it in
the meeting.

Article 10

If a shareholders meeting is
convened by the Board of
Directors, the meeting agenda
shall be set by the Board of
Directors. The meeting shall
proceed in the order set by the
agenda, which may not be
changed without a resolution of
the shareholders meeting.

The provisions of the preceding

If a shareholders meeting is
convened by the Board of
Directors, the meeting agenda
shall be set by the Board of
Directors. With regard to the
voting procedure of resolution
of each proposal (including
extempore motions), it shall be
pass the resolution on a one
agenda by one agenda basis. The

Revised in
accordance with
amendment in
laws and
regulations
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paragraph apply mutatis
mutandis to a shareholders
meeting convened by a party
with the power to convene that
is not the Board of Directors.
The chair may not declare the
meeting adjourned prior to
completion of deliberation on
the meeting agenda of the
preceding two paragraphs
(including extempore motions),
except by a resolution of the
shareholders meeting. If the
chair declares the meeting
adjourned in violation of the
rules of procedure, the other
members of the Board of
Directors shall promptly assist
the attending shareholders in
electing a new chair in
accordance with statutory
procedures, by agreement of a
majority of the votes represented
by the attending shareholders,
and then continue the meeting.
The chair shall allow ample
opportunity during the meeting
for explanation and discussion
of proposals and of amendments
or extempore motions put
forward by the shareholders;
when the chair is of the opinion
that a proposal has been
discussed sufficiently to put it to
a vote, the chair may announce
the discussion closed and call
for a vote.

meeting shall proceed in the
order set by the agenda, which
may not be changed without a
resolution of the shareholders
meeting. The provisions of the
preceding paragraph apply
mutatis mutandis to a
shareholders meeting convened
by a party with the power to
convene that is not the Board of
Directors. The chair may not
declare the meeting adjourned
prior to completion of
deliberation on the meeting
agenda of the preceding two
paragraphs (including
extempore motions), except by a
resolution of the shareholders
meeting. If the chair declares the
meeting adjourned in violation
of the rules of procedure, the
other members of the Board of
Directors shall promptly assist
the attending shareholders in
electing a new chair in
accordance with statutory
procedures, by agreement of a
majority of the votes represented
by the attending shareholders,
and then continue the meeting.
The chair shall allow ample
opportunity during the meeting
for explanation and discussion
of proposals and of amendments
or extempore motions put
forward by the shareholders;
when the chair is of the opinion
that a proposal has been
discussed sufficiently to put it to
a vote, the chair may announce
the discussion closed, call for a
vote and arrange sufficient and
appropriate time for voting.

Article 13

Shareholders shall be entitled to
one vote for each share held,
except when the shares are
restricted shares or are deemed
non-voting shares under Article
179, Paragraph 2 of the
Company Act.

When the Company holds a
shareholders meeting, it may
allow the shareholders to
exercise voting rights by
correspondence or electronic

means {in-aceordance with-the-

Shareholders shall be entitled to
one vote for each share held,
except when the shares are
restricted shares or are deemed
non-voting shares under Article
179, Paragraph 2 of the
Company Act. When the
Company holds a shareholders
meeting, it may allow the
shareholders to exercise voting
rights by correspondence or
electronic means. When voting
rights are exercised by

Revised in
accordance with
amendment in
laws and
regulations
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e of votina ricl
by-correspondence). When
voting rights are exercised by
correspondence or electronic
means, the method of exercise
shall be specified in the
shareholders meeting notice. A
shareholder exercising voting
rights by correspondence or
electronic means will be deemed
to have attended the meeting in
person, but to have waived
his/her rights with respect to the
extempore motions and
amendments to original
proposals of that meeting; it is
therefore advisable that the
Company avoid the submission
of extempore motions and
amendments to original
proposals. A shareholder
intending to exercise voting
rights by correspondence or
electronic means under the
preceding paragraph shall
deliver a written declaration of
intent to the Company at least 2
days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When
duplicate declarations of intent
are delivered, the one received
earliest shall prevail, except
when a declaration is made to
cancel the earlier declaration of
intent. After a shareholder has
exercised voting rights by
correspondence or electronic
means, in the event the
shareholder intends to attend the
shareholders meeting in person,
a written declaration of intent to
retract the voting rights already
exercised under the preceding
paragraph shall be made known
to the Company, by the same
means by which the voting
rights were exercised, at least 2
days before the date of the

correspondence or electronic
means, the method of exercise
shall be specified in the
shareholders meeting notice. A
shareholder exercising voting
rights by correspondence or
electronic means will be deemed
to have attended the meeting in
person, but to have waived
his/her rights with respect to the
extempore motions and
amendments to original
proposals of that meeting; it is
therefore advisable that the
Company avoid the submission
of extempore motions and
amendments to original
proposals. A shareholder
intending to exercise voting
rights by correspondence or
electronic means under the
preceding paragraph shall
deliver a written declaration of
intent to the Company at least 2
days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. When
duplicate declarations of intent
are delivered, the one received
earliest shall prevail, except
when a declaration is made to
cancel the earlier declaration of
intent. After a shareholder has
exercised voting rights by
correspondence or electronic
means, in the event the
shareholder intends to attend the
shareholders meeting in person,
a written declaration of intent to
retract the voting rights already
exercised under the preceding
paragraph shall be made known
to the Company, by the same
means by which the voting
rights were exercised, at least 2
days before the date of the
shareholders meeting. If the
notice of retraction is submitted
after that time, the voting rights
already exercised by
correspondence or electronic
means shall prevail. When a
shareholder has exercised voting
rights both by correspondence or
electronic means and by
appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders meeting, the voting




shareholders meeting. If the
notice of retraction is submitted
after that time, the voting rights
already exercised by
correspondence or electronic
means shall prevail. When a
shareholder has exercised voting
rights both by correspondence or
electronic means and by
appointing a proxy to attend a
shareholders meeting, the voting
rights exercised by the proxy in
the meeting shall prevail.
Except as otherwise provided in
the Company Act and in the
Company's Articles of
Incorporation, the resolution of a
proposal shall require an
affirmative majority of the
voting rights represented by
attending shareholders. At the
time of a vote, for each
proposal, the chair or a person
designated by the chair shall
first announce the total number
of voting rights represented by
the attending shareholders.

” lations i i
paragraph for the decision. With
the exception of proposals listed
on the agenda, other proposals
submitted by shareholders or the
amended or alternative versions
of the original proposal shall
require endorsement of other
shareholders. The shares
represented by the person
submitting the proposal and the
shareholders that endorsed the
proposal is required to exceed
one percent (1%) of all voting
rights of issued shares. In case
there are any amendments or
alternative solutions for the
same proposal, the chair shall
combine these
amendments/alternative

rights exercised by the proxy in
the meeting shall prevail.
Except as otherwise provided in
the Company Act and in the
Company's Articles of
Incorporation, the resolution of a
proposal shall require an
affirmative majority of the
voting rights represented by
attending shareholders. At the
time of a vote, for each
proposal, the chair or a person
designated by the chair shall
first announce the total number
of voting rights represented by
the attending shareholders.
With the exception of proposals
listed on the agenda, other
proposals submitted by
shareholders or the amended or
alternative versions of the
original proposal shall require
endorsement of other
shareholders. The shares
represented by the person
submitting the proposal and the
shareholders that endorsed the
proposal is required to exceed
one percent (1%) of all voting
rights of issued shares. In case
there are any amendments or
alternative solutions for the
same proposal, the chair shall
combine these
amendments/alternative
solutions with the original
proposal and decide their
priority for voting. In case one
of these cases has already been
resolved, the other cases shall be
considered rejected. No further
voting shall be required. The
chair shall appoint personnel to
monitor or count the votes. The
individuals monitoring the
votes, however, shall be the
shareholders of the Company.
Vote counting for shareholders
meeting proposals or elections
shall be conducted in public at
the place of the shareholders
meeting. Immediately after vote
counting has been completed,
the results of the voting,
including the statistical tallies of
the numbers of votes, shall be
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solutions with the original
proposal and decide their
priority for voting. In case one
of these cases has already been
resolved, the other cases shall be
considered rejected. No further
voting shall be required. The
chair shall appoint personnel to
monitor or count the votes. The
individuals monitoring the
votes, however, shall be the
shareholders of the Company.
\ote counting for shareholders
meeting proposals or elections
shall be conducted in public at
the place of the shareholders
meeting. Immediately after vote
counting has been completed,
the results of the voting,
including the statistical tallies of
the numbers of votes, shall be
announced on-site at the
meeting, and a record made of
the vote.

announced on-site at the
meeting, and a record made of
the vote.

Article 14 The election of Directors e+ The election of Directors at a Revised in
Supervisers at a shareholders shareholders meeting shall be accordance with
meeting shall be held in held in accordance with the establishment of
accordance with the applicable | applicable election and an audit
election and appointment rules appointment rules adopted by Committee.
adopted by the Company, and the Company, and the voting
the voting results shall be results shall be announced
announced on-site immediately, | on-site immediately, including
including the names of those the names of those elected as
elected as Directors and- Directors and the numbers of
Supervisors and the numbers of | votes with which they were
votes with which they were elected. The ballots for the
elected. The ballots for the election referred to in the
election referred to in the preceding paragraph shall be
preceding paragraph shall be sealed with the signatures of the
sealed with the signatures of the | monitoring personnel and kept
monitoring personnel and kept in proper custody for at least 1
in proper custody for at least 1 year. However, if a shareholder
year. However, if a shareholder | makes a litigious claim against
makes a litigious claim against | the Company according to
the Company according to Article 189 of the Company Act,

Article 189 of the Company Act, | the abovementioned documents
the abovementioned documents | must be retained until the end of
must be retained until the end of | the litigation.
the litigation.
Article 15 Matters relating to the Matters relating to the Revised in

resolutions of a shareholders
meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes. The meeting
minutes shall be signed or
sealed by the chair of the
meeting and a copy distributed

resolutions of a shareholders
meeting shall be recorded in the
meeting minutes. The meeting
minutes shall be signed or sealed
by the chair of the meeting and a
copy distributed to each

accordance with
establishment of
an audit
committee.

50




to each shareholder within 20
days after the conclusion of the
meeting. The meeting minutes
may be produced and distributed
in electronic form. The
Company may distribute the
meeting minutes of the
preceding paragraph by means
of a public announcement made
through the MOPS. The meeting
minutes shall accurately record
the year, month, day, and place
of the meeting, the chair's full
name, the methods by which
resolutions were adopted, and a
summary of the deliberations
and their results, and shall be
retained for the duration of the
existence of the Company.

A proposal passed via the
resolution method in the
preceding paragraph shall be
recorded as "passed
unanimously after the chair
inquires the all shareholders in
attendance" after the chair has
inquired all attending
shareholders and no
shareholders have voiced an
objection; however, if a
shareholder voiced an objection
to the proposal, the method of
voting, the approval voting
rights, and the voting rights ratio
shall be recorded.

shareholder within 20 days after
the conclusion of the meeting.
The meeting minutes may be
produced and distributed in
electronic form. The Company
may distribute the meeting
minutes of the preceding
paragraph by means of a public
announcement made through the
MOPS. The meeting minutes
shall accurately record the year,
month, day, and place of the
meeting, the chair's full name,
the methods by which
resolutions were adopted, and a
summary of the deliberations
and their voting results. When
there is an election of directors
and audit committee, the each
candidate votes shall be
disclosed. The meeting minutes
and each candidate votes shall
be retained for the duration of
the existence of the Company.
A proposal passed via the
resolution method in the
preceding paragraph shall be
recorded as "passed
unanimously after the chair
inquires the all shareholders in
attendance™ after the chair has
inquired all attending
shareholders and no
shareholders have voiced an
objection; however, if a
shareholder voiced an objection
to the proposal, the method of
voting, the approval voting
rights, and the voting rights ratio
shall be recorded.




(Attachment 8)
Comparison Table of the "Procedures for Election of Directors and Supervisors" of
Brogent Technologies Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description
Title Procedures for Election of Procedures for Election of Revised in
Directors and Supervisors: Directors. accordance with

establishment of
audit committee.

Article 1

To ensure a just, fair, and open
election of directors and-
supervisers-the Procedures are
adopted pursuant to Articles 21
and 41 of the Corporate
Governance Best-Practice
Principles for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies.

To ensure a just, fair, and open
election of directors, the
Procedures are adopted
pursuant to Articles 21 and 41
of the Corporate Governance
Best-Practice Principles for
TWSE/GTSM Listed
Companies.

Revised in

accordance with
establishment of
audit committee.

Article 2

Except as otherwise provided
by law and regulation or by the
Company’s articles of
incorporation, elections of
directors and-supervisors shall
be conducted in accordance
with these Procedures.

Except as otherwise provided
by law and regulation or by the
Company's articles of
incorporation, elections of
directors shall be conducted in
accordance with these
Procedures.

Revised in

accordance with
establishment of
audit committee.

Article 4

Supervisors of the Company

deleted

Revised in

accordance with
establishment of
audit committee.
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SUPErvisor-

Article 6

When the number of directors
falls below five due to the
dismissal of a director for any
reason, the Company shall hold
a by-election to fill the vacancy
at its next shareholders
meeting. When the number of
directors falls short by one third
of the total number prescribed
in the Company’s articles of
incorporation, the Company
shall call a special shareholders
meeting within 60 days from
the date of occurrence to hold a
by-election to fill the vacancies.
When the number of
independent directors falls
below that required under the
proviso of Article 14-2,
paragraph 1 of the Securities
and Exchange Act, or the
related provisions of the
Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation rules governing the
review of listings, or
subparagraph 8 of the Standards
for Determining Unsuitability
for GTSM Listing under Article
10, Paragraph 1 of the GreTai
Securities Market Rules
Governing the Review of
Securities for Trading on the
GTSM, a by-election shall be
held at the next shareholders
meeting to fill the vacancy.
When the independent directors
are dismissed en masse, a
special shareholders meeting
shall be called within 60 days
from the date of occurrence to
hold a by-election to fill the
vacancies.
When the number-of-
supervisors falls below that

hod i 5

When the number of directors
falls below five due to the
dismissal of a director for any
reason, the Company shall hold
a by-election to fill the vacancy
at its next shareholders
meeting. When the number of
directors falls short by one third
of the total number prescribed
in the Company’s articles of
incorporation, the Company
shall call a special shareholders
meeting within 60 days from
the date of occurrence to hold a
by-election to fill the vacancies.
When the number of
independent directors falls
below that required under the
proviso of Article 14-2,
paragraph 1 of the Securities
and Exchange Act, or the
related provisions of the
Taiwan Stock Exchange
Corporation rules governing the
review of listings, or
subparagraph 8 of the Standards
for Determining Unsuitability
for GTSM Listing under Article
10, Paragraph 1 of the GreTai
Securities Market Rules
Governing the Review of
Securities for Trading on the
GTSM, a by-election shall be
held at the next shareholders
meeting to fill the vacancy.
When the independent directors
are dismissed en masse, a
special shareholders meeting
shall be called within 60 days
from the date of occurrence to
hold a by-election to fill the
vacancies.

Revised in

accordance with
establishment of
audit committee.
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the ellsnuss’al el : aslupe_l Viser ﬁ'llell
the vacancy should ideally be-
held-at the-next shareholders
Feeting—When the supe’ PUISOFS
are el_lslnussedl e'l' II ia5S€;a-
shall be called within 60 days
from-the-date-of-occurrenceto-
hold a by-election to fill the
vacancies,

Article 7 The cumulative voting method | The cumulative voting method | Revised in
shall be used for election of the | shall be used for election of the | accordance with
directors and-supervisors at the | directors at the Compony. Each | establishment of
Company. Each share will have | share will have voting rights in | audit committee.
voting rights in number equal to | number equal to the directors to
the directors or-supervisers to be elected, and may be cast for
be elected, and may be cast for | asingle candidate or split
a single candidate or split among multiple candidates.
among multiple candidates.

Article 8 The board of directors shall The board of directors shall Revised in
prepare separate ballots for prepare separate ballots for accordance with
directors and-supervisors-in directors in numbers establishment of
numbers corresponding to the corresponding to the directors audit committee.
directors er-supenvisors to be to be elected. The number of
elected. The number of voting | voting rights associated with
rights associated with each each ballot shall be specified on
ballot shall be specified on the | the ballots, which shall then be
ballots, which shall then be distributed to the attending
distributed to the attending shareholders at the shareholders
shareholders at the shareholders | meeting. Attendance card
meeting. Attendance card numbers printed on the ballots
numbers printed on the ballots | may be used instead of
may be used instead of recording the names of voting
recording the names of voting shareholders.
shareholders.

Article 9 The number of directors-and- The number of directors will be | Revised in
supervisors will be as specified | as specified in the Company's accordance with

in the Company's articles of
incorporation, with voting
rights separately calculated for
independent and
non-independent director
positions. Those receiving
ballots representing the highest
numbers of voting rights will be
elected sequentially according
to their respective numbers of
votes. When two or more
persons receive the same
number of votes, thus
exceeding the specified number
of positions, they shall draw
lots to determine the winner,
with the chair drawing lots on

articles of incorporation, with
voting rights separately
calculated for independent and
non-independent director
positions. Those receiving
ballots representing the highest
numbers of voting rights will be
elected sequentially according
to their respective numbers of
votes. When two or more
persons receive the same
number of votes, thus
exceeding the specified number
of positions, they shall draw
lots to determine the winner,
with the chair drawing lots on
behalf of any person not in

establishment of
audit committee.
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behalf of any person not in
attendance.

attendance.

Article 13 The voting rights shall be The voting rights shall be Revised in
calculated on site immediately | calculated on site immediately | accordance with
after the end of the poll, and the | after the end of the poll, and the | establishment of
results of the calculation, results of the calculation, audit committee.
including the list of persons including the list of persons
elected as directors-e+ elected as directors shall be
supervisors shall be announced | announced by the chair on the
by the chair on the site. site.

Article 14 The board of directors of the The board of directors of the Revised in
Company shall issue Company shall issue accordance with

notifications to the persons
elected as directors o

SUpervisors:

notifications to the persons
elected as directors.

establishment of
audit committee.
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(Attachment 9)
Comparison Table of the "Procedures for the Acquisition or Disposal of Asset™" of Brogent
Technologies Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description
Article 7 Assessment and Operating Assessment and Operating Revised in
Procedures Procedures accordance
1) Price determination and 1) Price determination and with
supporting reference materials supporting reference materials establishment
Omitted Omitted of an audit
2) Investment Amount and 2) Investment Amount and committee.
Authorization Level Authorization Level
Omitted Omitted
(8) The Company's acquisition (8) The Company's acquisition
or disposal of assets shall or disposal of assets shall
require the approval of the require the approval of the
Board of Directors in Board of Directors in
accordance with the Procedures | accordance with the Procedures
or other legal requirements. If a | or other legal requirements. If a
Director expresses objection and | Director expresses objection and
records or written statements are | records or written statements are
available, the Company shall available, the Company shall
submit information regarding submit information regarding
the Director's objection to the the Director's objection to the
respective Supervisors. In audit committee. In addition, the
addition, the opinions of opinions of Independent
Independent Directors shall be Directors shall be taken into full
taken into full consideration in consideration in discussions at
discussions at the Board of the Board of Directors meeting
Directors meeting on the on the transaction for the
transaction for the acquisition or | acquisition or disposal of assets
disposal of assets in accordance | in accordance with regulations.
with regulations. Their approval | Their approval or objection and
or objection and reasons shall be | reasons shall be listed in the
listed in the meeting minutes. meeting minutes.
Omitted Omitted
Article 8 Related Party Transaction Related Party Transaction Revised in
Processing Procedures Processing Procedures accordance
1)When the Company engages 1)When the Company engages with
in any acquisition or disposal of | in any acquisition or disposal of | establishment
assets from or to a related party, | assets fromor to a related party, | of an audit
in addition to ensuring that the in addition to ensuring that the | committee.

real estate processing procedures
specified in Article 7 are
adopted, related resolution
procedures specified below shall
moreover be complied with and
the reasonableness of the
transaction terms by appraised;
if the transaction amount
reaches 10 percent or more of
the Company's total assets, the
Company shall also obtain an
appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a
CPA's opinion in compliance

real estate processing procedures
specified in Article 7 are
adopted, related resolution
procedures specified below shall
moreover be complied with and
the reasonableness of the
transaction terms by appraised;
if the transaction amount
reaches 10 percent or more of
the Company's total assets, the
Company shall also obtain an
appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a
CPA's opinion in compliance




with the provisions of the
preceding Section. The
"transaction amount” in the
preceding paragraph shall be
calculated in accordance with
the provisions stipulated in
Article 7-1. In addition, when
determining whether the
transaction target is a related
party, in addition to noting its
legal status, the actual relations
shall also be taken into
consideration.

2) Assessment and Operating
Procedures

When the Company acquires or
disposes of real estate from or to
a related party, or acquires or
disposes of assets other than real
estate from or to a related party
and the transaction amount
reaches 20 percent or more of
the Company’s paid-in capital,
10 percent or more of the
Company's total assets, or
NT$300 million or more, the
Company may not proceed to
enter into a transaction contract
or make a payment until the
following matters have been
approved by the Board of
Directors and ratified by the
SUpPervisors:

(1) The purpose, necessity and
anticipated benefit of the
acquisition or disposal of assets.
(2) The reason for choosing the
related party as a trading
counterparty.

(3) With respect to the
acquisition of real estate from a
related party, information
regarding appraisal of the
reasonableness of the
preliminary transaction terms in
accordance with Subparagraphs
(1) and (4) of Paragraph 3 of this
Atrticle.

(4) The date and price at which
the related party originally
acquired the real estate, the
original trading counterparty,
and that trading counterparty's
relationship to the Company and
the related party.

(5) Monthly cash flow forecasts

with the provisions of the
preceding Section. The
"transaction amount" in the
preceding paragraph shall be
calculated in accordance with
the provisions stipulated in
Article 7-1. In addition, when
determining whether the
transaction target is a related
party, in addition to noting its
legal status, the actual relations
shall also be taken into
consideration.

2) Assessment and Operating
Procedures

When the Company acquires or
disposes of real estate from or to
a related party, or acquires or
disposes of assets other than real
estate from or to a related party
and the transaction amount
reaches 20 percent or more of
the Company’s paid-in capital,
10 percent or more of the
Company's total assets, or
NT$300 million or more, the
Company may not proceed to
enter into a transaction contract
or make a payment until the
following matters have been
approved by the Board of
Directors and ratified by the
Audit Committee:

(1) The purpose, necessity and
anticipated benefit of the
acquisition or disposal of assets.
(2) The reason for choosing the
related party as a trading
counterparty.

(3) With respect to the
acquisition of real estate from a
related party, information
regarding appraisal of the
reasonableness of the
preliminary transaction terms in
accordance with Subparagraphs
(1) and (4) of Paragraph 3 of this
Atrticle.

(4) The date and price at which
the related party originally
acquired the real estate, the
original trading counterparty;,
and that trading counterparty’s
relationship to the Company and
the related party.

(5) Monthly cash flow forecasts




for the year commencing from
the anticipated month of signing
of the contract, evaluation of the
necessity of the transaction, and
reasonableness of fund
utilization.
(6) An appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a
CPA's opinion obtained in
compliance with the preceding
Article.
(7) Restrictive covenants and
other important stipulations
associated with the transaction.
The calculation of the
"transaction amount" referred to
in the preceding Paragraph shall
be made in accordance with
Article 11, Paragraph 1 herein,
and "within the preceding year"
as used herein refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence
of the current transaction. ltems
that have been approved by the
Board of Directors and ratified
by the Supervisors-in
accordance with the provisions
of the Standards need not be
counted toward the transaction
amount.
With respect to the acquisition
or disposal of machinery or
equipment for business use
between the Company and its
subsidiaries, the Company's
Board of Directors may pursuant
to Article 7, Paragraph 2,
Subparagraph 2 delegate the
Chairperson of the Board to
decide such matters when the
transaction is within a certain
amount and have the decisions
subsequently submitted to and
ratified by the next Board of
Directors meeting.
3) Appraisal of the
reasonableness of the transaction
price
(1) When the Company acquires
real estate from a related party,
it shall evaluate the
reasonableness of the transaction
costs by the following means:
1. Based upon the related party's
transaction price plus necessary
interest on funding and the costs

for the year commencing from
the anticipated month of signing
of the contract, evaluation of the
necessity of the transaction, and
reasonableness of fund
utilization.
(6) An appraisal report from a
professional appraiser or a
CPA's opinion obtained in
compliance with the preceding
Article.
(7) Restrictive covenants and
other important stipulations
associated with the transaction.
The calculation of the
"transaction amount" referred to
in the preceding Paragraph shall
be made in accordance with
Article 11, Paragraph 1 herein,
and "within the preceding year"
as used herein refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence
of the current transaction. ltems
that have been approved by the
Board of Directors and ratified
by the Audit Committee in
accordance with the provisions
of the Standards need not be
counted toward the transaction
amount.
With respect to the acquisition
or disposal of machinery or
equipment for business use
between the Company and its
subsidiaries, the Company's
Board of Directors may pursuant
to Article 7, Paragraph 2,
Subparagraph 2 delegate the
Chairperson of the Board to
decide such matters when the
transaction is within a certain
amount and have the decisions
subsequently submitted to and
ratified by the next Board of
Directors meeting.
3) Appraisal of the
reasonableness of the transaction
price
(1) When the Company acquires
real estate from a related party, it
shall evaluate the reasonableness
of the transaction costs by the
following means:
1. Based upon the related party's
transaction price plus necessary
interest on funding and the costs




to be duly borne by the buyer.
"Necessary interest on funding"
is imputed as the weighted
average interest rate on
borrowing in the year the
Company purchases the
property; provided, it may not
be higher than the maximum
non-financial industry lending
rate announced by the Ministry
of Finance.

2. Total loan value appraisal
from a financial institution
where the related party has
previously created a mortgage
on the property as security for a
loan; provided, the actual
cumulative amount loaned by
the financial institution shall
have been 70 percent or more of
the financial institution’s
appraised loan value of the
property and the period of the
loan shall have been 1 year or
more. However, this shall not
apply where the financial
institution is a related party of
one of the trading
counterparties.

(2) Where land and buildings
thereupon are combined as a
single property purchased in one
transaction, the transaction costs
for the land and the buildings
may be separately appraised in
accordance with either of the
means listed in the preceding
paragraph.

(3) When the Company acquires
real estate from a related party
and appraises the cost of the real
estate in accordance with
Paragraph 3, Subparagraphs (1)
and (2) of this Article, it shall
also engage a CPA to review the
appraisal and render a specific
opinion.

(4) Where the Company
acquires real estate froma
related party and one of the
following circumstances exists,
the acquisition shall only be
required for implementation in
accordance with Paragraphs 1
and 2 of this Article regarding
appraisal and operating

to be duly borne by the buyer.
"Necessary interest on funding"
is imputed as the weighted
average interest rate on
borrowing in the year the
Company purchases the
property; provided, it may not
be higher than the maximum
non-financial industry lending
rate announced by the Ministry
of Finance.

2. Total loan value appraisal
from a financial institution
where the related party has
previously created a mortgage
on the property as security for a
loan; provided, the actual
cumulative amount loaned by
the financial institution shall
have been 70 percent or more of
the financial institution's
appraised loan value of the
property and the period of the
loan shall have been 1 year or
more. However, this shall not
apply where the financial
institution is a related party of
one of the trading
counterparties.

(2) Where land and buildings
thereupon are combined as a
single property purchased in one
transaction, the transaction costs
for the land and the buildings
may be separately appraised in
accordance with either of the
means listed in the preceding
paragraph.

(3) When the Company acquires
real estate from a related party
and appraises the cost of the real
estate in accordance with
Paragraph 3, Subparagraphs (1)
and (2) of this Article, it shall
also engage a CPAto review the
appraisal and render a specific
opinion.

(4) Where the Company
acquires real estate from a
related party and one of the
following circumstances exists,
the acquisition shall only be
required for implementation in
accordance with Paragraphs 1
and 2 of this Article regarding
appraisal and operating




procedures and where the
regulations on the
reasonableness of the transaction
cost provided in Paragraph 3,
Subparagraphs (1), (2), and (3)
do not apply:

1. The related party acquired the
real estate through inheritance or
as a gift.

2. More than 5 years will have
elapsed from the time the related
party signed the contract to
obtain the real estate to the
signing date for the current
transaction.

3. The real estate is acquired
through signing of a joint
development contract with the
related party, or through
engaging a related party to build
real estate, either on the
Company's own land or on
rented land.

(5) When the Company acquires
real estate from a related party
and appraises the cost of the real
estate in accordance with
Paragraph 3, Subparagraphs (1)
and (2) of this Article, and the
results are uniformly lower than
the transaction price, the matter
shall be handled in compliance
with the regulations in
Paragraph 3, Subparagraph (6)
of this Article. However, where
the following circumstances
exist, objective evidence has
been submitted and specific
opinions on reasonableness have
been obtained from a
professional real estate appraiser
and a CPA, this restriction shall
not apply:

1. Where the related party
acquired undeveloped land or
leased land for development, it
may submit proof of compliance
with one of the following
conditions:

(i) Where undeveloped land is
appraised in accordance with the
means in the preceding Article,
and buildings according to the
related party's construction cost
plus reasonable construction
profit are valued in excess of the

procedures and where the
regulations on the
reasonableness of the transaction
cost provided in Paragraph 3,
Subparagraphs (1), (2), and (3)
do not apply:

1. The related party acquired the
real estate through inheritance or
as a gift.

2. More than 5 years will have
elapsed from the time the related
party signed the contract to
obtain the real estate to the
signing date for the current
transaction.

3. The real estate is acquired
through signing of a joint
development contract with the
related party, or through
engaging a related party to build
real estate, either on the
Company's own land or on
rented land.

(5) When the Company acquires
real estate from a related party
and appraises the cost of the real
estate in accordance with
Paragraph 3, Subparagraphs (1)
and (2) of this Article, and the
results are uniformly lower than
the transaction price, the matter
shall be handled in compliance
with the regulations in
Paragraph 3, Subparagraph (6)
of this Article. However, where
the following circumstances
exist, objective evidence has
been submitted and specific
opinions on reasonableness have
been obtained from a
professional real estate appraiser
and a CPA, this restriction shall
not apply:

1. Where the related party
acquired undeveloped land or
leased land for development, it
may submit proof of compliance
with one of the following
conditions:

(i) Where undeveloped land is
appraised in accordance with the
means in the preceding Article,
and buildings according to the
related party's construction cost
plus reasonable construction
profit are valued in excess of the
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actual transaction price. The
"Reasonable construction profit"
shall be deemed the average
gross operating profit margin of
the related party's construction
division over the most recent 3
years or the gross profit margin
for the construction industry for
the most recent period as
announced by the Ministry of
Finance, whichever is lower.

(ii) Completed transactions by
unrelated parties within the
preceding year involving other
floors of the same property or
neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land, where the land
area and transaction terms are
similar after calculation of
reasonable price discrepancies in
floor or area land prices in
accordance with standard
property market practices.

(iii) Completed leasing
transactions by unrelated parties
for other floors of the same
property from within the
preceding year, where the
transaction terms are similar
after calculation of reasonable
price discrepancies among floors
in accordance with standard
property leasing market
practices.

2. Where the Company acquires
real estate from a related party
and provides evidence that the
terms of the transaction are
similar to the terms of
transactions completed for the
acquisition of neighboring or
closely valued parcels of land of
a similar size by unrelated
parties within the preceding
year. Completed transactions for
neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land in the preceding
paragraph in principle refers to
parcels on the same or an
adjacent block and within a
distance of no more than 500
meters or parcels close in
publicly announced current
value; transaction for similarly
sized parcels in principle refers
to transactions completed by

actual transaction price. The
"Reasonable construction profit"”
shall be deemed the average
gross operating profit margin of
the related party’s construction
division over the most recent 3
years or the gross profit margin
for the construction industry for
the most recent period as
announced by the Ministry of
Finance, whichever is lower.

(ii) Completed transactions by
unrelated parties within the
preceding year involving other
floors of the same property or
neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land, where the land
area and transaction terms are
similar after calculation of
reasonable price discrepancies in
floor or area land prices in
accordance with standard
property market practices.

(iii) Completed leasing
transactions by unrelated parties
for other floors of the same
property from within the
preceding year, where the
transaction terms are similar
after calculation of reasonable
price discrepancies among floors
in accordance with standard
property leasing market
practices.

2. Where the Company acquires
real estate from a related party
and provides evidence that the
terms of the transaction are
similar to the terms of
transactions completed for the
acquisition of neighboring or
closely valued parcels of land of
a similar size by unrelated
parties within the preceding
year. Completed transactions for
neighboring or closely valued
parcels of land in the preceding
paragraph in principle refers to
parcels on the same or an
adjacent block and within a
distance of no more than 500
meters or parcels close in
publicly announced current
value; transaction for similarly
sized parcels in principle refers
to transactions completed by
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unrelated parties for parcels with
a land area of no less than 50
percent of the property in the
planned transaction; within the
preceding year refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence
of the acquisition of the real
estate.

(6). When the Company
acquires real estate froma
related party and appraises the
cost of the real estate in
accordance with Paragraph 3,
Subparagraph (1) and (2) of this
Article, and the results are
uniformly lower than the
transaction price, the following
items shall be carried out.
Where the Company uses the
equity method to account for its
investment in a public company
that has set aside a special
reserve under the preceding
paragraph may not utilize the
special reserve until it has
recognized a loss on decline in
market value of the assets it
purchased at a premium, or they
have been disposed of, or
adequate compensation has been
made, or the status quo ante has
been restored, or there is other
evidence confirming that there
was nothing unreasonable about
the transaction, and the FSC has
given its consent.

1. The Company shall set aside
a special reserve in accordance
with Article 41, Paragraph 1 of
the Securities and Exchange Act
against the difference between
the real estate transaction price
and the appraised cost, and may
not be distributed or used for
capital increase or issuance of
bonus shares. Where a public
company uses the equity method
to account for its investment in
another company, then the
special reserve called for under
Avrticle 41, Paragraph 1 of the
Securities and Exchange Act
shall be set aside pro rata in a
proportion consistent with the
share of public company's equity
stake in the other company.

unrelated parties for parcels with
a land area of no less than 50
percent of the property in the
planned transaction; within the
preceding year refers to the year
preceding the date of occurrence
of the acquisition of the real
estate.

(6). When the Company
acquires real estate from a
related party and appraises the
cost of the real estate in
accordance with Paragraph 3,
Subparagraph (1) and (2) of this
Article, and the results are
uniformly lower than the
transaction price, the following
items shall be carried out.
Where the Company uses the
equity method to account for its
investment in a public company
that has set aside a special
reserve under the preceding
paragraph may not utilize the
special reserve until it has
recognized a loss on decline in
market value of the assets it
purchased at a premium, or they
have been disposed of, or
adequate compensation has been
made, or the status quo ante has
been restored, or there is other
evidence confirming that there
was nothing unreasonable about
the transaction, and the FSC has
given its consent.

1. The Company shall set aside a
special reserve in accordance
with Article 41, Paragraph 1 of
the Securities and Exchange Act
against the difference between
the real estate transaction price
and the appraised cost, and may
not be distributed or used for
capital increase or issuance of
bonus shares. Where a public
company uses the equity method
to account for its investment in
another company, then the
special reserve called for under
Article 41, Paragraph 1 of the
Securities and Exchange Act
shall be set aside pro rata in a
proportion consistent with the
share of public company's equity
stake in the other company.
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2. Supeprvisers shall comply with
Article 218 of the Company Act.

3. Actions taken pursuant to
Item 1 and Item 2 of the
Subparagraph shall be reported
to a shareholders meeting, and
the details of the transaction
shall be disclosed in the annual
report and any investment
prospectus.

(7) When a public company
obtains real estate from a related
party, it shall also comply with
Paragraph 3, Subparagraph (6)
of the Article if there is other
evidence indicating that the
transaction was inconsistent
with business practice.

2. Audit Committee shall
comply with Article 218 of the
Company Act.

3. Actions taken pursuant to
Item 1 and Item 2 of the
Subparagraph shall be reported
to a shareholders meeting, and
the details of the transaction
shall be disclosed in the annual
report and any investment
prospectus.

(7) When a public company
obtains real estate from a related
party, it shall also comply with
Paragraph 3, Subparagraph (6)
of the Article if there is other
evidence indicating that the
transaction was inconsistent
with business practice.

Article 9 Acquisition and Disposal Acquisition and Disposal Revised in
Procedures for Derivatives Procedures for Derivatives accordance
1) Trading principles and 1) Trading principles and with
strategies strategies establishment
Omitted Omitted of an audit

committee.
2) Risk management measures 2) Risk management measures
(1) Credit risk management | (1) Credit risk management
Omitted Omitted
3) Internal auditing system 3) Internal a_uglltlng system
Internal auditing personnel shall | Internal auditing personnel shall
periodically study the periodically study the
appropriateness of internal appropriateness of internal
control of derivatives control of derivatives
transactions and conduct transacthns and_ conduct
monthly inspections on the monthly inspections on the
compliance of procedures of compliance of procedures of
departments trading derivatives glepartments trading derlvat.l ves
in order to analyze transaction | I Order to analyze transaction
cycles and formulate Audit cycles and formulate Audlt.
Reports. In the event of major | RePorts. In the event of major
violations, the Supervisors shall violations, t_hge AL_Jdlt (_qumlttee
be notified in writing. shall be notified in writing.
4) Regular assessment methods | 4) Regular assessment methods
Omitted Omitted

Article 14 Implementation and revision Implementation and revision Revised in
The Company's "Procedures for | The Company's "Procedures for | accordance
the Acquisition or Disposal of the Acquisition or Disposal of with
Assets" shall be delivered to the | Assets” shall be delivered to the | establishment
Supervisers-following resolution | Audit Committee following of an audit
in the Board of Directors resolution in the Board of committee.

meeting and submitted to the
shareholders' meeting for
approval. The same shall apply
to any subsequent revisions. If a
Director expresses objection and

Directors meeting and submitted
to the shareholders' meeting for
approval. The same shall apply
to any subsequent revisions. If a
Director expresses objection and
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records or written statements are
available, the Company shall
submit information regarding
the Director's objection to the
respective Supervisors and-the-
shareholders"are meeting for-
to-amy-sebseduentrovsions: In
addition, the opinions of
Independent Directors shall be
taken into full consideration in
discussions in the Board of
Directors meeting on the
"Procedures for the Acquisition
or Disposal of Assets" in
accordance with the preceding
paragraph. Their approval or
objection and reasons shall be
listed in the meeting minutes.

records or written statements are
available, the Company shall
submit information regarding
the Director's objection to the
Audit Committee. In addition,
the opinions of Independent
Directors shall be taken into full
consideration in discussions in
the Board of Directors meeting
on the "Procedures for the
Acquisition or Disposal of
Assets" in accordance with the
preceding paragraph. Their
approval or objection and
reasons shall be listed in the
meeting minutes.
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(Attachment 10)
Comparison Table of the "Handling Procedures for Making of Endorsements/Guarantees” of
Brogent Technologies Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description
Article 8 Limits on and changes of Limits on and changes of Revised in
endorsements/guarantees endorsements/guarantees accordance
1. Where the Company needs to | 1. Where the Company needs to | with
exceed the limits set out in exceed the limits set out in establishment
Article 4 for Article 4 for of audit
endorsements/guarantees to endorsements/guarantees to committee.
satisfy its business requirements, | satisfy its business requirements,
and where the conditions set out | and where the conditions set out
in the Procedures are complied in the Procedures are complied
with, it shall obtain approval with, it shall obtain approval
from the Board of Directors and | from the Board of Directors and
half or more of the directors shall | half or more of the directors shall
act as joint guarantors for any act as joint guarantors for any
loss that may be caused to the loss that may be caused to the
Company by the excess Company by the excess
endorsement/guarantee. It shall endorsement/guarantee. It shall
also amend the Rules for also amend the Rules for
Endorsements/Guarantees Endorsements/Guarantees
accordingly and submit the accordingly and submit the
amendments to the shareholders' | amendments to the shareholders'
meeting for ratification after the | meeting for ratification after the
fact. If the shareholders' meeting | fact. If the shareholders' meeting
does not give consent, the does not give consent, the
Company shall adopt a plan to Company shall adopt a plan to
discharge the amount in excess discharge the amount in excess
within a given time limit. In within a given time limit. In
addition, independent directors' addition, independent directors'
opinions shall be fully taken into | opinions shall be fully taken into
consideration and said opinions consideration and said opinions
specifically expressing assent or | specifically expressing assent or
dissent, and the reasons for dissent, and the reasons for
dissent, shall be included in the dissent, shall be included in the
minutes of the Board of minutes of the Board of
Directors' meeting. Directors' meeting.
2. Where as a result of change of | 2. Where as a result of change of
conditions the counterparty for conditions the counterparty for
which the endorsement/guarantee | which the endorsement/guarantee
is made no longer meets the is made no longer meets the
requirements of the Regulations | requirements of the Regulations
Governing Loaning of Funds and | Governing Loaning of Funds and
Making of Making of
Endorsements/Guarantees by Endorsements/Guarantees by
Public Companies, or the amount | Public Companies, or the amount
of endorsement/guarantee of endorsement/guarantee
exceeds the limit, the Company exceeds the limit, the Company
shall adopt rectification plans and | shall adopt rectification plans and
submit the rectification plans to submit the rectification plans to
aH-the-supervisers, and shall the Audit Committee, and shall
complete the rectification complete the rectification
according to the time frame set according to the time frame set
out in the plan. out in the plan.
Article 11 Audit procedures Audit procedures Revised in
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The Company’s internal auditors

The Company’s internal auditors

accordance

shall audit the operational shall audit the operational with
procedures for endorsement procedures for endorsement establishment
/guarantees, and the /guarantees, and the of audit
implementation thereof, no less implementation thereof, no less committee.
frequently than quarterly and frequently than quarterly and
must prepare written records must prepare written records
accordingly. They shall promptly | accordingly. They shall promptly
notify-aH-supervisors in writing notify Audit Committee in
of any material violation found. writing of any material violation
found.

Article 13 Implementation and revision Implementation and revision Revised in
1. After the Handling Procedures | 1. After the Handling Procedures | accordance
are passed by the Board of are passed by the Board of with
Directors, the Company shall Directors, the Company shall establishment
submit said Procedures to each- submit said Procedures for of audit
superviser and for approval by approval with the consent of committee.

the shareholders' meeting. Where
any director expresses dissent and
it is contained in the minutes or a
written statement, the Company
shall submit the dissenting
opinions to-each-superviser and
for discussion by the
shareholders' meeting. The same
shall apply to any amendments to
the Procedures.

2. Where the Company has
blished 1 o :
independent director, each

independent director's opinions
shall be fully taken into
consideration; the independent
directors' opinions specifically
expressing assent or dissent, and
the reasons for dissent, shall be
included in the minutes of the
Board of Directors' meeting.

one-half or more of all audit
committee members and by the
shareholders' meeting. Where any
director expresses dissent and it
is contained in the minutes or a
written statement, the Company
shall submit the dissenting
opinions to Audit Committee and
for discussion by the
shareholders' meeting. The same
shall apply to any amendments to
the Procedures. Any matter under

a subparagraph of the preceding
paragraph that has not been
approved with the consent of
one-half or more of all audit
committee members may be
undertaken upon the consent of
two-thirds or more of all
directors, without regard to the
restrictions of the preceding
paragraph, and the resolution of
the audit committee shall be
recorded in the minutes of the
directors meeting.

2. When it submits for discussion

by the board of directors pursuant

to the preceding paragraph, each
independent director's opinions
shall be fully taken into
consideration; the independent
directors' opinions specifically
expressing assent or dissent, and
the reasons for dissent, shall be
included in the minutes of the
Board of Directors' meeting.

All audit committee members and

all directors as used in preceding
paragraph shall mean the actual
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number of persons currently

holding those positions.
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(Attachment 11)
Comparison Table of the "Handling Procedures for Loaning Funds™ of Brogent Technologies
Inc. before and after Revision

Article Number | Before Revision After Revision Description

Article 9 Subsequent measures for control | Subsequent measures for control | Revised in
and management of loans, and and management of loans, and accordance
procedures for handling procedures for handling with
delinquent creditor's rights. delinquent creditor's rights. establishment
1. After a loan is extended, the 1. After a loan is extended, the of audit
Company shall pay attention to Company shall pay attention to | committee.

the financial, business, and
relevant credit status of the
borrower and guarantor. Where
collateral is provided, the
Company shall also notice
whether there are changes in the
value of collateral. A report on
significant change in the aforesaid
conditions shall be immediately
submitted to the President, and
appropriate disposals shall be
made in accordance with the
President’s instructions.

2. Where the borrower repays the
loan upon or before the loan is
due, accrued interests shall be
calculated first. After the borrower
pays off said interests along with
the principal, the Company may
cancel or return promissory notes
and/or the loan, or conduct the
release of lien.

3. Where the loan is due and the
creditor’s rights cannot be
recovered after debt collection,
and the Company still cannot
recover its creditor’s rights after
making necessary notices, it shall
seek legal actions to perform
measures to safeguard creditor’s
rights so as to ensure the
Company’s rights and interests.
4. Where as a result of change of
conditions the entity to which
funds are loaned no longer meets
the requirements of the
Regulations Governing Loaning
of Funds and Making of
Endorsements/Guarantees by
Public Companies, or the balance
of the loan exceeds the limit, the
Company shall adopt rectification
plans and submit the rectification
plans to al-the-supervisers, and
shall complete the rectification
according to the time frame set

the financial, business, and
relevant credit status of the
borrower and guarantor. Where
collateral is provided, the
Company shall also notice
whether there are changes in the
value of collateral. A report on
significant change in the
aforesaid conditions shall be
immediately submitted to the
President, and appropriate
disposals shall be made in
accordance with the President’s
instructions.

2. Where the borrower repays
the loan upon or before the loan
is due, accrued interests shall be
calculated first. After the
borrower pays off said interests
along with the principal, the
Company may cancel or return
promissory notes and/or the
loan, or conduct the release of
lien.

3. Where the loan is due and the
creditor’s rights cannot be
recovered after debt collection,
and the Company still cannot
recover its creditor’s rights after
making necessary notices, it
shall seek legal actions to
perform measures to safeguard
creditor’s rights so as to ensure
the Company’s rights and
interests.

4. Where as a result of change of
conditions the entity to which
funds are loaned no longer meets
the requirements of the
Regulations Governing Loaning
of Funds and Making of
Endorsements/Guarantees by
Public Companies, or the
balance of the loan exceeds the
limit, the Company shall adopt
rectification plans and submit
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out in the plan.

the rectification plans to Audit
Committee, and shall complete
the rectification according to the
time frame set out in the plan.

Article 10 Audit Procedure Audit Procedure Revised in
The Audit Dept. shall audit the The Audit Dept. shall audit the accordance
Handling Procedures for Loaning | Handling Procedures for with
Funds and the implementation Loaning Funds and the establishment
thereof no less frequently than implementation thereof no less of audit
quarterly and prepare written frequently than quarterly and committee.
records accordingly. It shall prepare written records
promptly notify all-supervisers in | accordingly. It shall promptly
writing of any material violation notify Audit Committee in
found. writing of any material violation

found.

Article 14 Implementation and revision Implementation and revision Revised in
1. After the Handling Procedures | 1. After the Handling Procedures | accordance
are passed by the Board of are passed by the Board of with
Directors, the Company shall Directors, the Company shall establishment
submit said Procedures to each- submit said Procedures for of audit
superviser and for approval by the | approval with the consent of committee.

shareholders' meeting. Where any
director expresses dissent and it is
contained in the minutes or a
written statement, the Company
shall submit the dissenting
opinions to each-superviser and
for discussion by the shareholders'
meeting. The same shall apply to
any amendments to the
Procedures.

2. Where-the Company-has-
blished .
independent-director-each

independent director's opinions
shall be fully taken into
consideration; the independent
directors' opinions specifically
expressing assent or dissent, and
the reasons for dissent, shall be
included in the minutes of the
Board of Directors' meeting.

one-half or more of all audit
committee members and by the
shareholders' meeting. Where
any director expresses dissent
and it is contained in the minutes
or a written statement, the
Company shall submit the
dissenting opinions to Audit
Committee and for discussion by
the shareholders' meeting. The
same shall apply to any
amendments to the Procedures.
Any matter under a
subparagraph of the preceding
paragraph that has not been
approved with the consent of
one-half or more of all audit
committee members may be
undertaken upon the consent of
two-thirds or more of all
directors, without regard to the
restrictions of the preceding
paragraph, and the resolution of
the audit committee shall be
recorded in the minutes of the
directors meeting.

2. When it submits for
discussion by the board of
directors pursuant to the
preceding paragraph, each
independent director's opinions
shall be fully taken into
consideration; the independent
directors' opinions specifically
expressing assent or dissent, and
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the reasons for dissent, shall be
included in the minutes of the
Board of Directors' meeting.
All audit committee members
and all directors as used in
preceding paragraph shall mean

the actual number of persons
currently holding those

positions.
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